

  


  


 


 
 


Acton-Boxborough Regional  
School Committee Meeting 


 
 


April 16, 2020 
 
 


7:00 p.m. Business Meeting 
including School Choice Program Hearing 


at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 


Via zoom webinar: 
https://abschools.zoom.us/j/92570711247 







 


ACTON-BOXBOROUGH REGIONAL SCHOOL COMMITTEE (ABRSC) MEETING 
REVISED AGENDA 


 
Virtual Public Zoom Webinar Meeting                                   April 16, 2020 
To attend: https://abschools.zoom.us/j/92570711247                       7:00 p.m. Business Meeting 
                 7:30 p.m. School Choice Program Public Hearing 
        7:35 p.m. (approx.) Return to Business Meeting 
                   


 
1. Call to Order  (7:00) 
 
2. OPEN MEETING 


2.1. Chairman’s Welcome 
2.1.1. Annual Spring Town Elections  


 Acton and Boxborough’s Elections are postponed to June 2 
 Boxborough Annual Town Meeting will be June 15 


2.2. Public Participation – Use Chat feature to indicate desire to participate 
2.3. High School Student Representatives Update 


 
3. PRESENTATION (7:10) 


3.1. School Closure Update – Peter Light 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS (7:30) 


4.1. Public Hearing: FY21 ABRSD MA DESE School Choice Program – Marie Altieri 
4.2. FY21 ABRSD MA DESE School Choice Program Participation – VOTE  
4.3. Budget Update – Dave Verdolino (addendum) 


4.3.1.   FY20 Updates  
4.3.2.   FY21 Updates 


4.4. Policy Subcommittee – Amy Krishnamurthy 
4.4.1.   Graduation Requirements, File: IKF, First Read – Deborah Bookis  
4.4.2.   Recommendation to Waive Portion of Student Progress Reports to Parents/Guardians, File: IKAB 


– VOTE - (2/3 vote required per Suspension of Policies, File: BGF)  
4.4.3. Draft Minutes of meeting on 4/9/20 


4.5. Recommendation to Approve Memorandum of Agreement Regarding Distance Learning due to 
Covid-19 with the Acton-Boxborough Education Association (ABEA) – VOTE – Marie Altieri 


4.5.1.  ABRSD and ABEA Side Letter re April Vacation 
4.6. **Update on the Financial Position of EDCO Collaborative – Peter Light 


 
5. ONGOING BUSINESS (8:15) 


5.1. Approval of ABRSC Meeting Minutes of  4/2/2020 (addendum) and 4/9/20 
5.2. Superintendent Evaluation Process Outline – Tessa McKinley  (brought to meeting) 
5.3. Subcommittee and Member Reports  


5.3.1.   School Building Committee Update –Peter Light 
5.3.1.1. *Recommendation to Authorize the Superintendent to Submit to the MSBA the 


Statement of Interest for the Conant School – VOTE – Peter Light   
5.3.1.2. Minutes of meeting on 3/25/20 


5.3.2. Boxborough Leadership Forum (BLF) – Tessa McKinley  (4/14/20) 
5.3.3. Budget Subcommittee – Diane Baum  (4/14/20) 


 
6. Statement of Warrants  


 
7. FYI 
8. Adjourn (8:50) 







 


 
 
 


 
For Your Information 


 Monthly Student Enrollment, 4/1/20 
 This Month in the Division of Open Government, March 2020  
 CASE Family News and Resources, April 2020 


 
 
 
Public Participation 


Per policy BEDH, members of the public may speak for up to 3 minutes on items not included on this agenda. 
Comments regarding items on the agenda should be made during that part of the meeting. Typically, the 
Committee/Administration will not respond to comments during public participation.   


 
 
 
NEXT MEETINGS:  
 


 May 7 – ABRSC Meeting at 7:00 p.m.  
 Wednesday, May 20 – ABRSC Meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 


 
 
 
 


Posted on 4/13/20 at 5:00 p.m. 
*Reposted on 4/14/20 at 5:15 p.m. to add 5.3.1.1 To Authorize the Superintendent to Submit to the MSBA the 


Statement of Interest for the Conant School – VOTE   
**Reposted on 4/15/20 at 4:30 p.m. to add 4.6 Update on the Financial Position of EDCO Collaborative  


(due to information received on 4/15/20) 
 
 
 
To watch/listen/participate: https://abschools.zoom.us/j/92570711247  
 
To watch/listen/without participation: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fyb0Ywh6LK4 
 







                    
 


Our Mission is to prepare all students to attain their full potential as life‐long learners, critical thinkers, 
and productive citizens of our diverse community and global society. 


Acton‐Boxborough Regional School District 
16 Charter Road   Acton, MA  01720 


978‐264‐4700 x 3209  fax: 978‐264‐3340 
www.abschools.org 


 


 


Marie Altieri 


Deputy Superintendent 


To:   Acton‐Boxborough Regional School Committee 


Date:  April 13, 2020 


Re:    School Choice Hearing 


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


The Acton‐Boxborough Regional Schools last accepted new school choice students in grades 9‐12 about 


thirteen years ago. Ever since then, the Acton‐Boxborough Regional School Committee has only opened 


up school choice for a limited number of seats at Kindergarten to accept siblings of school choice 


students.  The Boxborough Public Schools accepted school choice students at Blanchard Elementary 


School for several years before full regionalization in 2014.  Since full regionalization, we have only 


opened up enough school choice seats to accommodate siblings of current school choice students at 


Blanchard. This is primarily due to space concerns. The school choice law requires that preference to any 


available school choice seats be given to siblings.   


 


Our current school choice enrollment includes: 


18  Total Students 


  4  Blanchard 


  8  R. J. Grey Jr. High 


  6  Acton‐Boxborough Regional High School 


The School Committee must vote by May 1 of each year whether or not to accept school choice students 


for the following school year. Based on space and class size concerns, we are recommending that we 


continue to open up enough school choice seats to accept siblings of existing school choice students 


only.  There is one sibling of existing school choice students entering kindergarten in the fall of 2020.   


 


Recommended VOTE for the April 16, 2020 meeting: 


The Acton‐Boxborough Regional School Committee moves continue in the school choice program and 


limit openings to one seat in Kindergarten for the 2020‐2021 school year.   







Q3 Financial Update and Yearend Projection    4/16/20 SC Meeting 


I – GENERAL FUND 


REVENUES 


1. We are looking into Medicaid reimbursement and results of changes made to the 
administrative claim process.  No estimates yet, but we may have to reduce the 
projected revenue forecast for FY20 (Q2 projected $50K over $200K budget) 


2. Investment income is robust ($82.5M from bond sale proceeds); earnings for 
FY20 will be accounted for between Douglas/Gates and CIP projects 


3. Not anticipating any state aid reductions in FY20, based on all information; 
however, the final reimbursement rates for programs like Transportation Aid and 
Circuit Breaker might not be as generous as last year  


Preliminary Summary – Until the effect of the Medicaid reimbursement change is 
quantified, with the understanding that the bulk of earnings on the invested bond 
proceeds will not ultimately remain in the General Fund, and likely assuming no 
“pleasant surprise” in final state reimbursement program allocations, it would be 
appropriate to forecast no material FY20 revenue surplus at this time. 


 


EXPENDITURES 


1. Finance is working with all admins to clean up POs in the system (blanket orders, 
estimates, contractual arrangements, special ed tuitions, etc.); goal is to have our 
projection model reflect revised estimate of yearend costs assuming no return. 


2. Major categories of Expenditure/PO review – 
a. Buildings/academic departments (significant surplus expected due to reduced 


supply needs during shutdown) 
b. Personnel (updated projection completed – see separate details) 
c. Special ed tuitions, contracted educational services, transportation (paying 


invoiced submitted through March; seeking guidance from DESE etc. re 
potential negotiation of discounted costs during shutdown…more to come); 
note that tuition savings from earlier FY20 projections will result in reduced 
Circuit Breaker reimbursement in FY21, but net advantage to the District 


d. Facilities (in process; utilities expect significant savings, but likely not 
quantifiable until we can compare year-to-year April invoice variances) 


e. Transportation (in process); same as re CB, reduced costs in FY20 will result 
in reduced reimbursement in FY21, but net advantage to the District 


f. Health Insurance (minimal budget variance projected, net actives and retirees) 
g. Known miscellaneous items of significance: 
 Legal services (projected increased usage)  -$30K 







 Middlesex County Retirement (early pay discount)  $47K 
 Medicare (reduced overage, salary costs are lower) -$20K 
 Debt Service (no s-t debt; no subsidy from FOLF/CE)  $25K 
 Insurance (Workers Comp, P&C – experience)   $55K 
 Assessments (Choice and Charter tuitions – actual) -$57K 


h. Capital Expenditures (reviewing status and outlook with JD – much may 
depend on the extent to which projects can proceed before end of shutdown) 


Preliminary Summary – The shutdown has obviously arrested spending in a number of 
areas, the full extent of which is not yet quantified (most prominently special ed tuitions).  
It would not be surprising to see a net turnback approaching or exceeding $500K; more 
information and specifics should be available by the next SC meeting. 


 


SUMMARY – E&D 


Preliminary Summary – Anticipating a net positive surplus of $500K at yearend (versus a 
net deficit of approximately $250K as stated in the Q2 financial summary report) would 
restore a portion of the $1,145K of E&D included in the District’s FY21 budget.  As 
presented at Budget Saturday, the District has healthy reserve balances: 


 


However, one caveat re the official calculation of E&D is that DOR generally deducts 
deficit balances of other funds (e.g., ADK, etc.).  We should be able to eliminate those 
deficits (more to come on that), but I wanted this aspect of E&D determination mentioned. 







FY21 


Not yet have any official guidance on FY21.  At the greatest risk is state aid, presumably 
Chapter 70.  But any predictions of economic forecasts for A-B in FY21 at this point are, 
in my view, uneducated guesses.  (FYI, summary of state house video conference was 
emailed to members). 


Significant unknown factors: 


1. When will the shutdown end? (right now, the official MA shutdown ends May 4) 
2. Will it be sustained? (how soon will effective testing, vaccine, etc. be available) 
3. To what degree is the economic “bad news”? (unemployment levels, etc.) 
4. How will the economic play out at federal/state/local levels? (extent of federal 


relief…will it mirror ARRA relief in FY09-13?; extent of state revenue 
shortfall…how much will be offset by cuts to Chapter 70 Aid, etc.?; extent of cuts 
to A-B state aid…will it be backfilled by federal relief :: FY09-13? 


5. Longer term concerns - Impact on SOA implementation?; Recalibration of District 
reserves?; Federal relief implications to mitigate impact to taxpayers? 


 


UP NEXT 


May 7 SC meeting planned presentations: 


1. Finished Q3 financial report  
2. Update on status of revolving funds 
3. Update on additional shutdown-related implications to District finances 
4. FY21, as information becomes available and relevant 


 







ABRSD
FY2020 Budget Analysis - Personnel Costs
As of April 16, 2020


Personnel Costs by Category Monthly Budget Check Variances - Shutdown-related
Oct Nov Dec Jan, 2020 Feb Mar Apr, 2020 Change Comments


Teachers (161,469)      (61,891)        99,578         Primarily from additional unpaid leaves


Building Administrators (19,285)        (19,285)        -              


Central Office Administrators (10,298)        (11,298)        (1,000)         


Clerical & Technical (15,671)        (3,929)         11,742         Temporary addition to special ed assistants


Athletics 10,000         107,000       97,000         Savings from stipend reduction for spring season


Buildings and Grounds 12,453         36,000         23,547         


Custodial 30,864         101,864       71,000         Savings from late hiring of floating custodian


Misc. Student Services 34,775         34,000         (775)            


Substitutes - Instructional (75,000)        67,700         142,700       Need eliminated due to shutdown *


Substitutes - Other 26,500         25,500         (1,000)         


Overtime (100,000)      9,000           109,000       Need eliminated due to shutdown


Stipends - Curriculum/Instruction (30,000)        (99,244)        (69,244)        Additional stipends approved for distance learning/planning


Total Personnel (297,131)      185,417       482,548       482,548       


* - We budgeted subs to lose $100k this year to reduce the overall surplus at 
the end of the year. For better analysis, we put that $100k back in subs for next 


year and reduced the Vacancy factor by the same $100k. 







































                    
 


 
Acton‐Boxborough Regional School Committee 


15 Charter Road   Acton, MA  01720 
www.abschools.org 


 


 


To:   Acton‐Boxborough Regional School Committee members 


From:  Amy Krishnamurthy, Policy Subcommittee Chairperson 


Date:  April 13, 2020 


Re:    Recommendation to Waive Portion of Student Progress Reports Policy IKAB 


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


At our policy subcommittee meeting on April 9th, we discussed a possible action outlined in the 


Superintendent’s School Closure Update memo that was part of the School Committee meeting on April 


2nd. Due to possible changes to the grading system at the High School as a result of the Covid‐19 virus, 


the possible action stated “After consulting with our attorney, it is recommended that the school 


committee consider waiving policy IKAB Student Progress Reports to Parents/Guardians at a future 


meeting.  


Members discussed waiving the cooperative study of teachers, principals, parents and staff before 


making major changes to the grading system. A member emphasized the importance of community 


feedback in regard to this issue. Marie Altieri explained to subcommittee members how many 


administrators are involved with the Superintendent in this current discussion. They considered whether 


part of the policy should be waived or the whole policy should be revised. Ultimately, the School 


Committee does not vote on grading changes, but they do receive reports on it. 


The policy subcommittee (Amy Krishnamurthy, Michael Bo, Ginny Kremer, Maya Minkin, Nora Shine) 


unanimously voted to recommend the following motion for the School Committee’s consideration.  


 


Recommended VOTE for the April 16, 2020 ABRSC meeting: 


In the Student Progress Reports to Parents/Guardians policy IKAB, "to waive the cooperative study and 


evaluation by teachers, principals, parents, and the Superintendent or designee (last paragraph).  


Temporary changes to the grading system related to the Covid 19 virus will be made by the Principal and 


the Superintendent after consideration of feedback from parents, students, and staff. Such changes will 


be shared with the School Committee and the public. The waiver will be in effect until June 30, 2020." 


 


This vote would be taken per the Suspension of Policies Policy BGF, and would require a 2/3 vote to 


pass.   















1 
 


Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee 
Policy Subcommittee 


DRAFT Minutes 
================= 


April 9, 2020 at 8:30 a.m.   
================= 
Virtual Zoom Meeting 


 
 
Present:  Michael Bo (8:39 a.m.), Ginny Kremer, Amy Krishnamurthy, Maya Minkin, Nora 


Shine 
Absent:  none 
Others:  Marie Altieri, Beth Petr 
 
 
Amy Krishnamurthy called the subcommittee to order at 8:37 a.m. 
 
 
1. Questions regarding policies that may be impacted by Covid 19 


 
a.  Is there a policy for virtual classroom? For example, What’s counted as tardy 


or absent for both students or staff?  
The Memorandum of Agreement with the ABEA and the Superintendent’s Distance 
Learning Education Plan form the guidelines of virtual classroom. The School 
Committee’s Acceptable Use Policies for Technology Apply. Staff attendance is 
being recorded. Student tardies and attendance are not being recorded. If the School 
Committee engaged in more long-term virtual classrooms, the School Committee 
might consider a policy, but the subcommittee did not believe that we should write a 
new virtual classroom policy for this short-term shutdown. 
  
Is there a policy/protocol when staff/student can return? For example, protocol 
for students returned from February vacation after visited Italy/Europe.  Or 
students and staff return after closure. Will there be a Temperature Check 
Protocol?  
The District relies on the Center for Disease Control (CDC) Guidelines, MA Dept of 
Public Health, the Commissioner of Education, and the Governor. The Governor 
determined that we are all closed now. Where those resources do not dictate action, 
the Superintendent would decide (similar to calling a snow day) but not the School 
Committee. A member asked that parents be told who made a decision when an 
important one is communicated so parents know that it was not the School 
Committee.  


 
b. Can district change calendar after it’s voted? I.e. can district decide to use 


February or April vacation to make up school days during uncertainty? 
Yes, the School Calendar is a School Committee voted decision with contractual 
language. A change to April vacation would require a side letter with the Acton-
Boxborough Education Association and a vote of the School Committee.  


 
c. What’s the policy/protocol for school to decide on closure or evacuation? 


See above answer to (b). 
 


d. Is there a policy for PPE? This includes Supply, training, education, etc.  







2 
 


This would also be according to CDC Guidelines for specific situations so general 
procedures created prior to an event would not be appropriate.  


 
e. Is there a Telework policy or guide? 


This would be found in the ABEA Memorandum of Agreement. 
 


f. What’s the policy or process to change Grading policy, or student 
assessment/GPA calculation?  
See discussion below of Student Progress Reports to Parents/Guardians policy 
IKAB. 


 
g. What is the policy or process for any changes on teacher evaluation, or 


teachers’ responsibility?  
Assessing teachers is the Superintendent’s responsibility, not the School 
Committee’s. There is a short policy for this but the details and requirements are part 
of the contract language found in Collective Bargaining Agreements.   
 


h.  Is there a policy/rules/responsibilities for any hardware taken home?   
Yes, the policies, 


 Empowered Digital Use - Access to Digital Resources - File: IJND  
 Empowered Digital Use - Elementary Student Contract - File: IJND-E  
 Employee Technology Acceptable Use Policy - File: GBEE 


cover this. Staff are required to sign an agreement for devices they are given by the 
District.  
 


i. Does the policy "Students In Crisis" JLDBB and JLDBB-R govern the current 
COVID-19 situation? 
Members reviewed the procedures to this policy and noted that it does refer to 
natural disasters. Michael feels that this policy has an “in-building” focus and Covid-
19 affects everyone. Ginny disagreed saying that it includes outside as well. This 
policy and procedures do apply now - the “crisis team” that is called for would be the 
Superintendent and his Senior Leadership Team (SLT). They have consulted and 
met daily through this pandemic. Michael Bo will think about this policy and consider 
if he has further questions about it.  


 
 
 
2. Student Progress Reports to Parents/Guardians, File: IKAB 


In his memo dated 4/1/20, in response to possible changes to the grading systems at the 
High School,  the Superintendent suggested a “Possible Action: After consulting with our 
attorney, it is recommended that the School Committee consider waiving policy IKAB at a 
future meeting.”  
 
Members discussed waiving the involvement of teachers, principals, parents and staff 
before making major changes to the grading system. A member emphasized that community 
feedback is very important. Marie explained how many administrators are involved with the 
Superintendent in this current discussion, and that they are taking into consideration 
feedback from students, staff, and parents/guardians. They considered whether part should 
be waived or the policy should be revised. Ultimately, the School Committee does not vote 
on grading changes, but they do receive reports on it.  
 
Nora moved, Ginny seconded and it was unanimously VOTED by roll call: 







3 
 


  
In the "Student Progress Reports to Parents/Guardians" policy IKAB,  "to waive the 
cooperative study and evaluation by teachers, principals, parents, and the 
Superintendent or designee (last paragraph).   
 
Temporary changes to the grading system related to the Covid 19 virus will be made 
by the Principal and the Superintendent after consideration of feedback from parents, 
students, and staff. Such changes will be shared with the School Committee and the 
public. The waiver will be in effect until June 30, 2020." 
 
(YES: Bo, Kremer, Krishnamurthy, Minkin, Shine)  


 
 
3. Minutes of Feb 4, Mar 10 and Mar 31 meetings 


Approval of the minutes of the 3 meetings was moved by Ginny, seconded by Maya and 
unanimously voted by roll call.  (YES: Bo, Kremer, Krishnamurthy, Minkin, Shine)  
 
 


Next subcommittee meeting was tentatively scheduled for Thursday, April 23 at 8:30 a.m. It 
was suggested that the subcommittee consider meeting every two weeks.  
 
Ginny moved, Michael seconded and the subcommittee was adjourned at 9:32 a.m.  
(YES: Bo, Kremer, Krishnamurthy, Minkin, Shine)  


 
 


Respectfully submitted,  
Beth Petr 
 


 
List of Documents Used:   


 Posted agenda 
 Draft minutes of meetings on Feb 4, Mar 10 and Mar 31 
 Email from Amy Krishnamurthy to subcommittee members on Apr 8 that included 


questions from Angie Tso and Michael Bo 
 Policies:  


o Student Progress Reports to Parents/Guardians, File: IKAB and -R 
o Students in Crisis, File: JLDBB 







Memorandum of Agreement  
between the  


Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee (the “District”)  
and the 


Acton Boxborough Education Association (the “Association”)  
 
 
The District and the Association agree: 
 
1. The term “teacher” and “teachers” as used hereafter in this Agreement refer only to 


such persons as at the time in question fall within the bargaining unit as defined in 
Article 1 of the 2017-2020 ABEA Contract. 


 
2. The District and Association approach this COVID-19 school closure and pandemic 


with the expectation that they will work cooperatively to provide students with the 
best possible educational experience and connection to their school community, and to 
provide the best possible support to teachers during this unprecedented time. 


 
3. Any changes to educator evaluation will be addressed in a separate document. 
 
4. During the school closure, teachers who were actively employed as of March 12 and 


are not on a leave of absence shall receive full pay and benefits associated with their 
contracted Schedule A role.  Time during the school closure shall count towards 
Professional Teacher Status.  During the school closure, teachers are expected to 
remain available during normal work hours. 


 
5. The confidentiality of records, virtual discussions, or other matters which relate to 


student confidentiality during the closure period cannot be guaranteed.  In the event 
IEP meetings, or other meetings which trigger privacy issues are conducted during the 
closure period, the District shall assume any and all liability for student privacy 
violations which may occur, including FERPA.  


 
6. The Committee shall provide teachers with the hardware and software necessary to 


perform their distance learning duties. All teachers shall receive adequate training in 
the hardware, software and/or online platforms prior to the commencement of 
distance learning responsibilities.  Requests for additional training shall not be denied. 
Teachers who do not have internet in their homes shall be reimbursed for the cost of 
installation where available. If home access to the internet is not available, or if access 
is of a bandwidth insufficient to meet the needs of distance learning, teachers shall be 
held harmless for their inability to participate in distance learning.  


 
7. During school closure, teachers will engage in distance learning with their students on 


a regular basis.  While distance learning cannot replicate the in-person school 
experience, the District and the Association recognize a mutual obligation to engage 
students in meaningful and productive learning opportunities through an 







appropriately structured educational program, via a combination of teacher-directed 
learning and age-appropriate student- or family-directed learning.  


 
8. In order to support the social and emotional needs of students, the District and the 


Association recognize the value of teachers connecting with students in a synchronous 
manner virtually.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the terms “Synchronous” and 
“Asynchronous” shall be defined thusly: 


 
a. Synchronous learning is a learning mode where students learn at the same time. 


It is recognized as possibly more engaging and effective and allows for instant 
feedback and clarification.  Examples include live video conferencing, live audio 
conferencing, live chat, and live streamed videos. 


 
b. Asynchronous learning is a learning mode where students learn at different 


times.  It is recognized as possibly more convenient and flexible and allows 
students to work at their own pace.  Examples include email, screencasts, 
Flipgrid videos, Google Classroom work, and blog posts or comments.  


 
9. When appropriate, the District will create a regular schedule for synchronous 


educational experiences for the benefit of families and in order to ensure teachers do 
not impede each other’s efforts to connect with their students.  Live video conferencing 
shall not be a required component of distance learning.  Teachers who do not engage in 
live video conferences are expected to work with their administrator to identify a 
suitable alternative synchronous method to connect regularly with their students that 
provides a reasonably equitable experience.  These methods may include, but are not 
limited to, live audio conferencing with students and running a live chat room with 
students.  Teachers shall endeavor to offer regular synchronous educational 
opportunities for their students during this pandemic, with an understanding that due 
to family and/or household circumstances this may not be possible regularly or at all. 
Teachers who are not able to provide a regular synchronous educational experience 
for their students will work collaboratively with their Administrator and the 
Association to find a solution. 


 
10. For teachers who engage in live video conferencing with students, the District shall 


provide teachers with a secure means to do so. 
 
11. No teacher shall be required to use their personal phones to call or text students and 


families.  The right of teachers to maintain the privacy of their homes and families shall 
be respected.  


 
12. Teachers who do not have regular student responsibilities that can be accomplished 


via distance learning (e.g. nurses) shall be required to support students in other ways, 
or engage in professional learning activities or curriculum work in collaboration with 
their administrator. 







 
13. In the event a teacher requires absence from work responsibilities, they shall report 


such absences through normal means if possible, and the District will be responsible 
for informing families of the absence.  All contractual benefits related to leave shall 
remain in place during the pandemic, in addition to those benefits offered as a result of 
the pandemic by the federal government and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 


 
14. Teachers who were on FMLA or medical leave before the March 13 closure may return 


to work if they provide appropriate medical documentation, and provided that they 
are capable of performing the duties outlined in this Agreement.  


 
15. No Schedule B stipends will be paid to teachers for activities canceled as a result of the 


pandemic.  For those activities for which teachers had already completed substantial 
preparation work before the closure of schools (e.g. the work of a spring varsity 
coach), teachers will be paid 25 percent of their contracted stipend. 


 
16. In order to assist elementary school teachers during the pandemic, the District will 


create stipended positions for the purpose of distance learning curriculum 
development.  These positions will be paid $200.00 per week, not to exceed $2000.00 
total, and will only exist during the period of school closure.  The salary associated 
with this position shall be pensionable in the same way as any other Schedule B 
stipend.  


 
17. Teachers acting in good faith and using sound professional judgment shall not be 


subject to any disciplinary action for lesson planning, implementation, delivery, family 
contact and/or student assessment associated with distance learning due to the unique 
circumstances surrounding this Agreement. 


 
18. All provisions of the collective bargaining agreement between the Committee and the 


Association shall remain in effect except to the extent such provisions have been 
durationally modified by this Agreement.  


 
19. This Memorandum of Agreement is temporary and will stay in force and effect until 


the Governor’s school closure order is lifted or until the end of the school year, 
whichever is earlier.  It will not be extended unless by mutual agreement.  


 
20. This Memorandum of Agreement shall not be used as precedent or cited as practice by 


either the Committee or the Association in any proceeding whatsoever except to 
enforce the terms of this Memorandum of Agreement. 


 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
This AGREEMENT has been duly executed on April 3, 2020 by the authorized 
representatives of the Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee and by 
the Acton Boxborough Education Association. 
 
 
 
ACTON-BOXBOROUGH REGIONAL ACTON BOXBOROUGH 
DISTRICT SCHOOL COMMITTEE EDUCATION ASSOCIATION 
 
 


Tessa McKinley Mike Balulescu  
________________________________ ________________________________  
Tessa McKinley, ABRSC Chair Mike Balulescu, ABEA President 
 
 
 


  


________________________________ 
Marc Lewis, ABEA Negotiations Chair 


 







Memorandum of Agreement  
between the  


Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee (the “District”)  
and the 


Acton Boxborough Education Association (the “Association”)  
 
 
The District and the Association agree: 
 
1. The April vacation week contractually scheduled between April 21, 2020 and April 


24, 2020 will instead constitute four regular school days, with Patriots Day (April 21) 
remaining a day off from school. 


 
2. As a result of canceling the April vacation week, the last day of the 2019-2020 


school year will now be June 17, 2020. 
 
3. Any member of the ABEA for whom this Agreement presents a hardship shall work 


with the District and the Association to find a reasonable solution given the unique 
circumstances of altering a contractual vacation week. 


 
4. This Memorandum of Agreement shall not be used as precedent or cited as 


practice by either the District or the Association in any proceeding whatsoever 
except to enforce the terms of this Memorandum of Agreement. 


 
 
 
This AGREEMENT has been duly executed on April 9, 2020 by the authorized 
representatives of the Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee and by 
the Acton Boxborough Education Association. 
 
 
 
ACTON-BOXBOROUGH REGIONAL ACTON BOXBOROUGH 
DISTRICT SCHOOL COMMITTEE EDUCATION ASSOCIATION 
 


 
Tessa McKinley Mike Balulescu 
________________________________ 
______________________________ 
Tessa McKinley, ABRSC Chair Mike Balulescu, ABEA President 







1 
 


ACTON-BOXBOROUGH REGIONAL SCHOOL COMMITTEE (ABRSC) MEETING 
DRAFT Minutes 


 
Virtual Public Zoom Webinar Meeting                                     April 2, 2020 
To attend: https://zoom.us/j/503148228                            7:00 p.m. Business Meeting 
             8:30 p.m. (approx.) Executive Session 
                   


 
Members Present: Diane Baum, Michael Bo, Adam Klein, Ginny Kremer, Amy Krishnamurthy, Tessa 


McKinley, Maya Minkin, Paul Murphy, John Petersen, Nora Shine, Angie Tso 
Members Absent: none 
Others: Marie Altieri, Deborah Bookis, Dawn Bentley, Debbie Dixson, Peter Light, Beth Petr, 


Dave Verdolino, Amy Bisiewicz 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


 
 


1. Call to Order  (7:00) 
The ABRSC was called to order at 7:05 p.m. by Chairperson Tessa McKinley.  


 
Due to the schools being closed as a result of the coronavirus, Tessa stated that the meeting was being 
conducted remotely via a Zoom webinar by all 11 School Committee members, per our Remote Participation 
policy, BEDJA. It was also recorded and being live streamed on youtube. It will be posted on Acton TV’s 
website at http://actontv.org/on-demand/government. Per the remote policy, all votes were to be done by roll 
call with each member stating their vote after the Chairperson called their name.  


 
2. OPEN MEETING 


2.1. Chairman’s Welcome 
2.1.1. Annual Spring Town Elections 
The public was encouraged to check the Towns’ websites for the most up to date information about the 
elections and Town Meetings.  Both Acton and Boxborough’s Elections have been postponed to June 2. 


 
2.2. Public Participation – none 


 
2.3. High School Student Representatives Update – Michael Cheng and Charles Wang 


Michael spoke about the transition to Pass Fail grading at the High School and that it is generally being 
well received. He said there is a good amount of variance between how the teachers are approaching 
instruction so far. Charles agreed with Michael. He felt that most seniors agree w Pass Fail because it has 
been so stressful after doing the college applications. Younger students may feel more negative about 
Pass Fail. There are conflicts with teachers doing meetings at the same time so kids have to choose.  
 


2.4. Superintendent’s Update  
Mr. Light thanked the Senior Leadership Team for their extraordinary efforts over the past weeks. Many 
have been working 12-14 hour days and it is very challenging for everyone.  


 
He asked everyone to consider what it means to have a core value of equity. While the district plans 
educational values in the best of times, he stressed that today, during one of the most challenging times of 
our lives, equity is even more important to keep in the forefront. During the worst of times, our value of 
equity must “be held so near and dear” and must be “thought of so deeply” to ensure that our students 
who really need assistance to access our educational system and opportunities are able to do so. Worries 
about jobs and food, access to internet, reliable technology, the ability to speak English, and more makes 
access even more difficult. Putting families in the role of education provider as well, makes it even more 
stressful. Mr. Light reminded everyone that because we are so deeply committed to equity as a core value, 







2 
 


we never want to put ourselves in a position of pitting one student against another. It is a very important 
moment to keep this focus front and center.  


 
3. PRESENTATION  


3.1. Social Emotional Program Evaluation - Nate Levenson from District Management Group (DMG)   
Dawn Bentley joined Nate Levenson for the presentation of DMG’s work of  “Expanding and 
Strengthening Social, Emotional, and Behavioral Supports” for the District. Three conditions must be met 
for any of Nate’s recommendations: they have to be good for kids, good for staff, and reasonable for the 
budget. After interviewing hundreds of people and working with 40 staff members, five areas of strength 
were identified for AB to build on, and six potential areas were identified for growth.  
 
Nate concluded his slides saying that AB has been “walking the walk and is at the high end of being 
committed to the social-emotional and behavioral needs of their students.” He also noted tremendous 
honesty in Superintendent Light’s Report of Entry Findings because it set such a positive tone, and 
demonstrated that he was willing to identify issues and start addressing them.  


 
Questions/Comments from the Committee included:  


 Veteran teachers acting as mentors for newer staff was a focus several years ago. Do we still do 
this? Nate shared that we do mentor new staff and also commented that bringing in outside 
speakers can feel good, but it may not really be instructive. He further offered that professional 
learning is sometimes better coming from inside, because adult learning is very strong when it 
comes from colleagues, like with a coaching model. Dr. Levenson also noted that AB’s staff takes 
PL seriously and in many cases, the expertise that we need already exists in our own staff.  


 What is the next step in a unified vision for kids as they move up the grade levels? Nate replied 
that some staff members want this, especially those working in multiple schools across the 
district, but principals and teachers did not want this so much. He said that it is tough to establish 
a unified, aligned vision, but it is definitely worth doing. Three steps are required: First, a 
declaration that the District is doing this. Next, the District needs to consider what is non-
negotiable and common, to be highly inclusive. He also suggested that when rolling out a plan, 
the district would be most successful if it is explicit in explaining the ‘why’ behind the non-
negotiables. Lastly, the implementation plan over time must be excellent, otherwise there is no 
point to go through it all.  


 Because this is part of Peter’s Superintendent Goals, it’s important that we do this now. Another 
presentation was done in May 2017 (related to MTSS). Although not as comprehensive, the 
takeaway was similar – increasing groups whose performance is low, diverse approaches in 
schools, within and without. A question at the end was, “are we a system of schools or a school 
system?”. This is the most important question. Because we have open enrollment, schools have 
developed their own personalities.  


 A locus of control should be as close to the students as possible, in one member’s mind. 
“Inconsistency” is the key word. How do we think about centralizing ideas like social-emotional 
skill building and programming without taking the control away in order to benefit students the 
most? Nate replied that as a country, we have gone through a pendulum swing of tight Central 
Office control and site-based control, and we are “seeing sanity move somewhere in the middle.” 
We need to acknowledge that we have differences from school to school but also that they funnel 
into a singular school at the Junior High. Nate added that every difference you see between 
schools should only be because the kids in the school are different and need something different. 
There are also historic reasons because they always did it one way, particularly if people like 
what they’re doing. Sometimes it’s because of the kids, and sometimes not. He cautioned to avoid 
thinking that all of this is about one way only.  


 When addressing the differences between the schools, is it also true for the Junior High and High 
School? Nate responded that most students start in elementary, move to Jr High, then to High 
School. They benefit from continuity and similarities, particularly those who struggle with 







3 
 


transitions. As they get into junior high and high school, there is more variation teacher by 
teacher.  


 What is an appropriate timeframe to implement these kinds of changes for teachers? Nate 
answered that you can start soon and make a difference in 6 months to a year, and you’ll still be 
working on it in 5 years. Depending on how inclusive the process and implementation is, teachers 
will be okay working on it. More importantly is how you implement changes. If you do a few 
things well and they are helpful to the staff, morale goes up. Nate felt that if you try to do it with 
an outside person or in a traditional way, it can be frustrating and not helpful.  


 AB’s demographic changes and the perceived tension between the social-emotional learning and 
special education needs of our students and academic excellence/achievement is cleaving at our 
district. How can we move forward without it dividing us? Nate replied that AB is fairly unique 
with the rate and mix of demographic change. Palo Alto and some Silicon Valley studies were 
very similar to AB. The path forward will be nuanced. A shared vision around the causes of 
anxiety is key to addressing the tension between academics and SEL. This vision   must embrace 
high achievement and rigor but in a way that reduces tension and stress. The answer can’t be to 
reduce high levels of achievement. “Being high-performing and modestly mellow is rare but 
possible,” according to Nate.   


 A member noted that most people do not like receiving constructive criticism or feeling 
vulnerable, but members should model behavior for our students.  


 A member commented that our students live part of their lives virtually and wondered if that had 
been taken into account? Nate indicated that the sixth opportunity in his list says this is all bigger 
than just the schools’ issues.  


 One member commented that the most disturbing part of the presentation is the lack of consensus 
around anxiety.  
 


Nate concluded the discussion by telling the Committee not to forget that AB is starting from a very 
strong place. The challenges are significant but we will be able to address them. He also reminded them 
of the universal tension between rigor and stress and the Central Office vs site-based control. While some 
things should be more uniform, they don’t need to be lock-step. Mr. Light thanked Nate and his team as 
well as Dawn Bentley and the SEL Leadership Team that steered this effort. He added that these are 
universal dilemmas that need to be managed, not problems that will be solved. They are not binary, but 
are about finding the middle ground for the community.  


 
3.2. Kelley’s Corner Update – Acton Town Manager John Mangiaratti, Senior Planner Kristen Guichard 


Following the Acton 2019 Town Meeting, due to the strong support shown by the community, MassDOT 
agreed to fund completion of the design, saving the Town $450,000. Voters will be asked to fund the 
$800,000 right of way cost at the 2020 Acton Town Meeting. Minor delays are expected due to Covid-19 
however construction is expected to begin in FY2022.  


 
3.3. School Closure Update – Education Plan – Peter Light 


Deborah Bookis, Dawn Bentley and Debbie Dixson joined Mr. Light for the Distance Learning Plan for 
Extended Closure presentation. This is the intended plan no matter how long buildings are closed now. 
The Superintendent, Leadership Team and teachers were thanked for a very impressive plan.  
Questions/comments from the Committee included: 


 What about PreK and if new content is deferred until classes resume in person, what if they 
aren’t? Peter: Leadership is planning to possibly altering the curriculum for the fall if needed. 
Often first quarter is review so this would work if necessary. Regarding the preschool, Joe 
Gibowicz’s team has similar learning plans, and is very innovative with his staff.   


 Regarding synchronous learning time, are we trying to have elementary classes at consistent 
times during the day similar to what the Jr High and High School have? Peter: a webinar similar 
to this presentation will be done for families next week to share this information. We will aim for 
consistency about times and want to try to avoid conflicts across grade levels.  







4 
 


 Will High School students receive guidance from all of their teachers every day? Peter: Yes, teachers 
are asked to give all students about 20 minutes of work per day, but they are live in class for about 
20 minutes one or two times per week. The rest of the time the students are working on other things. 


 Regarding equity, different levels of students require different amounts of time to learn. This plan 
sets a fixed amount of time. Will there be incremental changes? Peter: We will have to read our 
students and look for ways to refine as we go. We don’t plan to change right away because this is a 
moving target, and something that we have never had to do before.  


 The four days of “live sessions” and one day of independent activities strikes a good balance 
between learning and staff collaboration. Will there be after school help/office hours? Peter: our 
educators are working full days with flexibility, but during the non synchronous times, students can 
reach out. Some families are struggling and would like more school time and rigor for students, 
“expectations with compassion” is our guide. We expect students to engage but we know that every 
student and family is unique. We are not going to penalize people because they cannot access 
something. We will work with our families.  


 How are we handling kids that are not checking in or don’t want to participate? Debbie Dixson: we 
will continue to reach out to the family or student at least on a weekly basis, until a parent says not 
to, even if it’s not academic. Peter: The High School is tracking if students turn in assignments 
because that is a way to see if they are engaged.  


 Is there an update to the Parent Communication Map? Peter: It is still in place and will probably be 
shared again as a reminder for families. They should always start a concern with the teacher, then 
department head or administrator, and then move up to the Central Office if still unresolved. 


 
Comments from the Public: 
 A citizen was very impressed by the comprehensive plan for distance learning with a holistic approach, 


but felt that more time for learning and wellness to be connected with staff and friends could be included. 
Peter: Administrators have tried to balance things using feedback from staff and parents. Some people 
want more online learning with time spent live. Some students struggle to be available at a specific time. 
Some families don’t have a computer/device for each child. This seems like the right balance for now.  


 How does this Plan compare to neighboring towns? Peter: Every town we spoke with approaches it 
differently based on their community feedback. We are in the middle for synchronous time. He talks to 
superintendents in neighboring towns three times a week.  


 
4. NEW BUSINESS   


4.1. School Closure Finance Update – Dave Verdolino  
4.1.1. Revolving Accounts 
Dave’s reports assume students are not returning to the school buildings this school year. His focus has 
been to try to understand the impact of the school closure on the revolving accounts in order to project 
year end estimates for FY20. These include: All Day Kindergarten, Integrated Preschool, School Lunch, 
Athletics, Community Education, Circuit Breaker and School Choice Revenue Funds.  
 
4.1.2.  Possible Roll Call VOTE FY21 All Day Kindergarten Tuition  
The budget subcommittee met yesterday and recommends that the School Committee vote at a future 
meeting on next year’s tuition. Mr. Light presented a series of options for the next meeting, asking for 
guidance on how to resolve the $200,000 deficit in this revolving account for FY20. The Committee 
could: 


1. revisit the decision to reduce ADK tuition for FY21 
2. decide not to provide additional tuition refunds for ADK students in FY20 
3. replenish the deficit from district reserves 
4. make reductions to the FY21 operating budget to offset deficiencies in the ADK account 


 
Members discussed how ADK students receive the same educational opportunity as the half day students 
right now. When school is in normal session, these students do get more time, but not more content. 







5 
 


While closed, half-day and all-day students are getting the same time and content.If it was decided not to 
refund the ADK tuition, families with financial hardship should be encouraged to reach out to the 
administration for assistance. Some members felt it was important to keep the Committee’s commitment 
to ADK with the lower tuition as planned. Several members agreed with Adam Klein’s point that 
addressing a $200,000 ADK deficit when we have a healthy reserve balance was the type of situation that 
our reserves policy was created to cover to maintain our programming. John agreed but emphasized that 
this decision needs to be seen in the entirety of the whole budget. Members agreed to consider these 
options and vote at a future meeting as suggested by the Superintendent.  


 
4.2. Policy Subcommittee – Amy Krishnamurthy (met on March 31st) 


4.2.1.   Graduation Requirements, File: IKF, First Read – Deborah Bookis  
Note: The request to name the ABRHS pool will be discussed at a future meeting. 


 Due to the late hour, this item was tabled for a future meeting. 
 


5. ONGOING BUSINESS   
5.1. Approval of ABRSC Meeting Minutes of  3/19/2020  


Paul Murphy moved, Ginny Kremer seconded and it was unanimously, 
VOTED by roll call: to approve the minutes of 3/19/20. (YES: Baum, Bo, Klein, Kremer, 
Krishnamurthy, McKinley, Minkin, Murphy, Petersen, Shine, Tso) 


 
5.2. Superintendent Evaluation Implications of School Closure – Tessa McKinley (oral)  


Typically a more detailed evaluation update would be given at this time, but given the current 
circumstances, and that the current school committee members will be in place until at least June 2 due 
to elections being rescheduled, further guidance will be shared at the next meeting. 


 
5.3. Subcommittee and Member Reports  


5.3.1.   School Building Committee Update –Peter Light 
5.3.1.1. Minutes of meeting on 3/11/20 


Mr. Light reported that nothing critical has occurred. Cost estimating and value engineering are 
continuing and are all still on target. Proceeds from the sale of the bonds have been deposited in the bank.   


 
5.3.2.   Budget Subcommittee – Diane Baum (met on April 1st)  
This was covered in the budget discussion earlier in the meeting. 


 
5.3.3.   Boxborough Leadership Forum – Tessa McKinley   - none 
5.3.4.   Special Education Parent Advisory Council (SEPAC) – Diane Baum/Tessa McKinley  


 
6. Statement of Warrants – none 


 
7. FYI – none   
 


 
8. EXECUTIVE SESSION 


 
At 10:15 p.m. the Chairperson stated that  
“Pursuant to MGL Ch 30A, sec.21(a) Purpose 3: to discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining with 
the Acton-Boxborough Education Association (ABEA), the American Federation of State, County and 
Municipal Employees (AFSCME) and the Acton-Boxborough Office Support Association (OSA)  because an 
open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the Committee”  
 
The motion was made by Adam Klein, seconded by Paul Murphy and was unanimously, 


VOTED by roll call: YES: Baum, Bo, Klein, Kremer, Krishnamurthy, McKinley, Minkin, Murphy, 
Petersen, Shine, Tso 







6 
 


 
The Chairperson stated that the Committee would return to Open Meeting for the sole purpose of adjourning.  


 
The Committee returned to Open Meeting and following a Roll Call Vote (moved by Paul Murphy, seconded by 
John Petersen) the ABRSC adjourned at 11:12 p.m.   


 
Respectfully submitted,  
Beth Petr 
 
List of Documents Used: see agenda with list 
 
 


NEXT MEETINGS:  
 April 16 – ABRSC Meeting at 7:00 p.m.  
 May 7 – ABRSC Meeting at 7:00 p.m.  
 Acton and Boxborough Elections are postponed to June 2 
 


 
Posted on 3/27/20 at 5:00 p.m. 


Reposted on 3/31/20 at 5:15 p.m. to add ABEA to the Executive Session,  
4.1.2 Possible VOTE FY21 All Day Kindergarten Tuition, and  


5.3.2 Budget Subcommittee Update 
 







 


ACTON-BOXBOROUGH REGIONAL SCHOOL COMMITTEE (ABRSC) MEETING 
DRAFT MINUTES 


 
Virtual Public Zoom Webinar Meeting                    April 9 , 2020 
To attend: https://zoom.us/j/883988639                              11:00 a.m.  
                   


 
Members Present: Diane Baum, Ginny Kremer, Amy Krishnamurthy, Tessa McKinley, Maya 


Minkin (video started at 11:10 a.m.), Paul Murphy, John Petersen, Nora Shine, 
Angie Tso 


Members Absent: Michael Bo, Adam Klein 
Others: Marie Altieri, Peter Light, Beth Petr 


 
The ABRSC was called to order at 11:00 a.m. by Chairperson Tessa McKinley.  
 
Due to the schools being closed as a result of the coronavirus, Tessa stated that the meeting was being 
conducted remotely via a Zoom webinar by 9 School Committee members, with Michael Bo and Adam 
Klein absent, per our Remote Participation policy, BEDJA. It was also being recorded by the Zoom 
application and being live streamed on youtube. It will be posted on Acton TV’s website tomorrow at 
http://actontv.org/on-demand/government. Per the remote policy, all votes were to be done by roll call 
with each member stating their vote after the Chairperson said their name.  


 
1. Discussion of Whether or Not to Schedule School during April 2020 vacation  


1.1. Possible VOTE 
 


John Petersen made a motion, seconded by Paul Murphy, as suggested in the Superintendent’s 
memo: 


“Move that the ABRSC amend the FY20 School Calendar to cancel April Vacation, subject 
to collective bargaining, in order to provide greater educational continuity during the 
school closure.” 


 
Mr. Light reviewed his memo. At the time the memo was written, 2,780 survey responses were 
received from families. 82.4% of them preferred continuing education efforts instead of the vacation. 
The ABEA also surveyed educators and they felt the same. Mr. Light noted that since that time, 300 
more responses were received all saying that April vacation should not be changed. Statistically it 
was impossible that that many would come in at once all saying the same thing in contrast to the 
strong trend that existed when the memo was written. The poll is now closed.  


 
Members’ discussion included: 


 If teachers agree, then School Committee should support it, although if people need to 
stop and recharge, they should make time to do that. It is important that people feel 
well and grounded.  


 If families and teachers agree, the Committee should support it although some 
districts are pushing for a longer school year now. It was appreciated that Mr. Light 
said that it would cost approximately $300,000 per day to pay educators to keep 
school opened longer in June.  


 If vacation is cancelled, Community Education will do what they can to reschedule 
some of their classes around the academics.  







 


 With the State’s proposal, students will attend 180 days and staff will go the usual 
183 days.  


 A side letter with the ABEA will be signed by the School Committee Chair, as usual.  
 


The School Committee VOTED unanimously by roll call to approve the motion. (YES: Baum, 
Kremer, Krishnamurthy, McKinley, Minkin, Murphy, Petersen, Shine, Tso) 


 
The Superintendent will send a memo to families later today with this information. He thanked  his 
Leadership Team and all of the teachers for their efforts. He encouraged everyone to pause this weekend 
and relax with family.  
 
Assistant Superintendent Deborah Bookis was congratulated on earning her Doctorate last week. John 
Petersen mentioned this as a great example of good things still happening around us. He also noted that 
calling this special meeting to take this vote is an example of the Committee (like everyone) taking 
unusual steps to move forward and agreeing with this mode of operating in these unique times.  
 
 
At 11:25 a.m., Paul Murphy moved, Maya Minkin seconded and it was unanimously, 


VOTED by roll call to adjourn. (YES: Baum, Kremer, Krishnamurthy, McKinley, Minkin, Murphy, 
Petersen, Shine, Tso) 


 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Beth Petr 
 
List of Documents Used: agenda, memo from the Superintendent dated 4/8/20 


 
 
 
 
NEXT MEETING:  
 


 April 16 – ABRSC Meeting at 7:00 p.m. via zoom   
 


 
 







REQUIRED FORM OF VOTE TO SUBMIT A STATEMENT OF INTEREST 
 


 
REQUIRED VOTES 
If the SOI is being submitted by a City or Town, a vote in the following form is required from both the 
City Council/Board of Aldermen OR the Board of Selectmen/equivalent governing body AND the 
School Committee.   
 
If the SOI is being submitted by a regional school district, a vote in the following form is required from 
the Regional School Committee only. 
 
*Current votes for each SOI submission are required.   
 
FORM OF VOTE 
Please use the text below to prepare your City’s, Town’s or District’s required vote(s).  
 
 
Resolved:  Having convened in an open meeting on  April 16, 2020, prior to the SOI submission closing 
date, the Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee of Acton and Boxborough, in accordance with 
its charter, by-laws, and ordinances, has voted to authorize the Superintendent to submit to the 
Massachusetts School Building Authority the Statement of Interest Form dated February 3, 2020 for the 
Luther Conant Elementary School located at 80 Taylor Rd which describes and explains the following 
deficiencies and the priority category(s) for which an application may be submitted to the Massachusetts 
School Building Authority in the future  Priority 2 - Elimination of Severe Overcrowding, Priority 5 - 
Replacement, renovation or modernization of school facility systems, such as roofs, windows, 
boilers, heating and ventilation systems, to increase energy conservation and decrease energy 
related costs in a school facility, and Priority 7 - Replacement of or addition to obsolete buildings 
in order to provide for a full range of programs consistent with state and approved local 
requirements;  and hereby further specifically acknowledges that by submitting this Statement of 
Interest Form, the Massachusetts School Building Authority in no way guarantees the acceptance or the 
approval of an application, the awarding of a grant or any other funding commitment from the 
Massachusetts School Building Authority, or commits the City/Town/Regional School District to filing 
an application for funding with the Massachusetts School Building Authority.   
 
 
DOCUMENTATION OF VOTE 
Documentation of each vote must be submitted in hard copy to the MSBA as follows:   
 


1) For the vote of the City Council/Board of Aldermen or Board of Selectmen/equivalent governing 
body, a copy of the text of the vote must be submitted with a certification of the City/Town 
Clerk that the vote was duly recorded and the date of the vote must be provided.   


 
2) For the vote of the School Committee, Minutes of the School Committee meeting at which the 


vote was taken must be submitted with the original signature of the Committee Chairperson. 







Massachusetts School Building Authority


Next Steps to Finalize Submission of your FY 2020 Statement of Interest


Thank you for submitting your FY 2020 Statement of Interest (SOI) to the MSBA electronically. Please note, the
District’s submission is not yet complete. The District is required to mail all required supporting
documentation, which is described below.


VOTES: Each SOI must be submitted with the proper vote documentation. This means that (1) the required
governing bodies have voted to submit each SOI, (2) the specific vote language required by the MSBA has been
used, and (3) the District has submitted a record of the vote in the format required by the MSBA.


School Committee Vote: Submittal of all SOIs must be approved by a vote of the School Committee.
For documentation of the vote of the School Committee, Minutes of the School Committee meeting
at which the vote was taken must be submitted with the original signature of the Committee
Chairperson. The Minutes must contain the actual text of the vote taken which should be
substantially the same as the MSBA’s SOI vote language.


Municipal Body Vote: SOIs that are submitted by cities and towns must be approved by a vote of the
appropriate municipal body (e.g., City Council/ Aldermen/Board of Selectmen) in addition to a vote of the
School Committee.


Regional School Districts do not need to submit a vote of the municipal body.
For the vote of the municipal governing body, a copy of the text of the vote, which shall be
substantially the same as the MSBA’s SOI vote language, must be submitted with a certification of
the City/Town Clerk that the vote was taken and duly recorded, and the date of the vote must be
provided.


ADDITI;ONAL DOCUMENTATION FOR SOI PRIORITIES #1 AND #3: If a District selects Priority #1 and/or
Priority #3, the District is required to submit additional documentation with its SOI.


If a District selects Priority #1, Replacement or renovation of a building which is structurally unsound or
otherwise in a condition seriously jeopardizing the health and safety of the school children, where no
alternative exists, the MSBA requires a hard copy of the engineering or other report detailing the nature
and severity of the problem and a written professional opinion of how imminent the system failure is likely
to manifest itself. The District also must submit photographs of the problematic building area or system to
the MSBA.
If a District selects Priority #3, Prevention of a loss of accreditation, the SOI will not be considered
complete unless and until a summary of the accreditation report focused on the deficiency as stated in this
SOI is provided.


ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: In addition to the information required above, the District may also provide
any reports, pictures, or other information they feel will give the MSBA a better understanding of the issues
identified at a facility.


If you have any questions about the SOI process please contact the MSBA at 617-720-4466 or
SOI@massschoolbuildings.org.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                1                                        Statement of Interest







Massachusetts School Building Authority


School District    Acton-Boxborough


District Contact    John David Head TEL: (978) 264-4700


Name of School    Luther Conant


Submission Date    2/3/2020


SOI CERTIFICATION


To be eligible to submit a Statement of Interest (SOI), a district must certify the following:


The district hereby acknowledges and agrees that this SOI is NOT an application for funding and that submission of
this SOI in no way commits the MSBA to accept an application, approve an application, provide a grant or any other
type of funding, or places any other obligation on the MSBA.
The district hereby acknowledges that no district shall have any entitlement to funds from the MSBA, pursuant to
M.G.L. c. 70B or the provisions of 963 CMR 2.00.
The district hereby acknowledges that the provisions of 963 CMR 2.00 shall apply to the district and all projects for
which the district is seeking and/or receiving funds for any portion of a municipally-owned or regionally-owned
school facility from the MSBA pursuant to M.G.L. c. 70B.
The district hereby acknowledges that this SOI is for one existing municipally-owned or regionally-owned public
school facility in the district that is currently used or will be used to educate public PreK-12 students and that the
facility for which the SOI is being submitted does not serve a solely early childhood or Pre-K student population.
After the district completes and submits this SOI electronically, the district must mail hard copies of the required
documentation described under the "Vote" tab, on or before the deadline.
The district will schedule and hold a meeting at which the School Committee will vote, using the specific language
contained in the "Vote" tab, to authorize the submission of this SOI. This is required for cities, towns, and regional
school districts.
Prior to the submission of the SOI, the district will schedule and hold a meeting at which the City Council/Board of
Aldermen or Board of Selectmen/equivalent governing body will vote, using the specific language contained in the
"Vote" tab, to authorize the submission of this SOI. This is not required for regional school districts.
On or before the SOI deadline, the district will submit the minutes of the meeting at which the School Committee
votes to authorize the Superintendent to submit this SOI. The District will use the MSBA's vote template and the vote
will specifically reference the school and the priorities for which the SOI is being submitted. The minutes will be
signed by the School Committee Chair. This is required for cities, towns, and regional school districts.
The district has arranged with the City/Town Clerk to certify the vote of the City Council/Board of Aldermen or
Board of Selectmen/equivalent governing body to authorize the Superintendent to submit this SOI. The district will
use the MSBA's vote template and submit the full text of this vote, which will specifically reference the school and
the priorities for which the SOI is being submitted, to the MSBA on or before the SOI deadline. This is not required
for regional school districts.
The district hereby acknowledges that this SOI submission will not be complete until the MSBA has received all of
the required vote documentation in a format acceptable to the MSBA. If Priority 1 is selected, your SOI will not be
considered complete unless and until you provide the required engineering (or other) report, a professional opinion
regarding the problem, and photographs of the problematic area or system. If Priority 3 is selected, your SOI will not
be considered complete unless and until you provide a summary of the accreditation report focused on the deficiency
as stated in this SOI.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                2                                        Statement of Interest







 
 
LOCAL CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT/SCHOOL COMMITTEE CHAIR


 (E.g., Mayor, Town Manager, Board of Selectmen)


Chief Executive Officer * School Committee Chair Superintendent of Schools 


  
   
(signature) (signature) (signature)


Date Date Date 


* Local chief executive officer: In a city or town with a manager form of government, the manager of the
municipality; in other cities, the mayor; and in other towns, the board of selectmen unless, in a city or town,
some other municipal office is designated to the chief executive office under the provisions of a local charter.
Please note, in districts where the Superintendent is also the Local Chief Executive Officer, it is required for
the same person to sign the Statement of Interest Certifications twice.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                3                                        Statement of Interest







Massachusetts School Building Authority


School District    Acton-Boxborough


District Contact    John David Head TEL: (978) 264-4700


Name of School    Luther Conant


Submission Date    2/3/2020


Note


The following Priorities have been included in the Statement of Interest:


1. Replacement or renovation of a building which is structurally unsound or otherwise in a condition seriously
jeopardizing the health and safety of school children, where no alternative exists.


2. Elimination of existing severe overcrowding.
3. Prevention of the loss of accreditation.
4. Prevention of severe overcrowding expected to result from increased enrollments.
5. Replacement, renovation or modernization of school facility systems, such as roofs, windows, boilers, heating


and ventilation systems, to increase energy conservation and decrease energy related costs in a school facility.
6. Short term enrollment growth.
7. Replacement of or addition to obsolete buildings in order to provide for a full range of programs consistent with


state and approved local requirements.
8. Transition from court-ordered and approved racial balance school districts to walk-to, so-called, or other school


districts.


SOI Vote Requirement


 I acknowledge that I have reviewed the MSBA’s vote requirements for submitting an SOI which are set forth in the
Vote Tab of this SOI. I understand that the MSBA requires votes from specific parties/governing bodies, in a specific
format using the language provided by the MSBA. Further, I understand that the MSBA requires certified and signed vote
documentation to be submitted with the SOI. I acknowledge that my SOI will not be considered complete and, therefore,
will not be reviewed by the MSBA unless the required accompanying vote documentation is submitted to the satisfaction
of the MSBA.


SOI Program: Core
 Potential Project Scope: Renovation\ Addition


 Is this a Potential Consolidation? No


Is this SOI the District Priority SOI? Yes
School name of the District Priority SOI: Luther Conant


Is this part of a larger facilities plan? Yes
If "YES", please provide the following:


 Facilities Plan Date: 9/15/2016
 Planning Firm: Dore and Whittier


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                4                                        Statement of Interest







Please provide a brief summary of the plan including its goals and how the school facility that is the
subject of this SOI fits into that plan:


The Conant Elementary School is one of 9 facilities being evaluated by Dore and Whittier as part of a two-
phase plan. Tasks and goals associated with this plan are described in detail below. PHASE I – Existing
Conditions Analysis Task 1 - Meet with the Acton-Boxborough Regional School District to confirm project
objectives and timelines. Assist in setting project goals. Set progress review meetings for all tasks through
completion of services and submission of final report. Task 2 - Obtain and review current 10 year enrollment
projections completed by the District. Task 3 - Review capacity of each facility and their ability to support the
projected enrollment as well as how each facility meets current MSBA space standards. Task 4 - Review
existing school buildings, grounds and systems relative to supporting the District’s security protocols and
summarize the findings in graphic and narrative format. Task 5- Obtain and review existing drawings of each
of the Acton-Boxborough Regional School District’s school buildings, engineering surveys and reports, and
precedent studies and investigation as well as all capital projects conducted over the past 10 years. Task 6-
Perform existing conditions analysis of each of the Acton-Boxborough Regional School District’s school
buildings. The analysis shall include: • Meet with school facilities staff to understand known current issues, •
Tour each school to assess current physical condition of structure, interior and exterior materials and finishes,
• Review building, accessibility and life safety code compliance, • Review plumbing, fire suppression,
HVAC, electrical and technology systems condition, • Review hazardous material reports (if applicable). Task
7 - Perform analysis of each school site to include:• Site area of each school, including buildings, parking,
roadways and playfields • Available area for additions or new buildings, • Available area for athletic fields
and play areas,• Available area for vehicular and pedestrian circulation, • Potential impact on Neighbors. Task
8 - Based on information gathered in the Tasks above, develop a spreadsheet of maintenance and capital
project items by school, by discipline. Provide a recommendation of priority for each item including: urgent;
short term, 5 - 10 years. In addition develop the task list so items or projects from various schools can be
grouped discipline Task 9 – Final Report - Based on approval of the Acton-Boxborough Regional School
District, prepare and submit the final report including any comments received. PHASE II – Develop
Educational Program and Master Plan Options The Acton-Boxborough Regional School District is interested
in having its' school buildings support and enhance the goals of 21st Century teaching and learning. The
exploration and development of the program and options may include: grade configurations; alternative
educational delivery models; community learning and use and other ideas that may represent contemporary
and future educational thinking. Task 1 - Meet with the Acton-Boxborough Regional School District and
School Principals to identify long-range educational goals for the schools. Develop Educational
Specifications; perform programming meetings with each school administration and appropriate educational
and operational staff. Develop program assessments based on projected populations for each school. Assist
the District with up to two, conceptual design phase, community forums to solicit input from parents,
students and other community members. Task 2- Propose up to three conceptual capital needs Master Plan
alternatives, which meet the program and existing conditions requirements for each school. These shall
comprise options for maintenance only, renovation and addition, or new construction as well as any potential
grade reconfiguration or school consolidation. These shall be analyzed with respect to: • Educational
appropriateness • Availability of appropriate “expansion” area on reviewed sites; • Impact on present school
and site operations; • Impact on neighbors; • Construction schedule and phasing (multiple phases vs. one
phase project)• Impact on existing HVAC/plumbing and electrical systems;• “Satisfaction” of education
goals; • Order of magnitude construction costs and total project costs, including phasing, swing space issues.
• Provide context for how components may (or may not) meet the Massachusetts School Building Authority
(MSBA) criteria for capital projects. Task 4-Provide for the preferred option: • Conceptual plans to illustrate
the Master Plan; • Phasing plan;• Preliminary schedule for design through construction; • Educational
specifications;• Projection of project costs for preferred option to include all costs normally a part of
Massachusetts school projects to include: o Construction costs (“bricks and mortar”); o Itemized Fees,
furnishings & equipment, clerk of works, project manager, contingencies, etc; Task 5 - Generate Final Report


Please provide the current student to teacher ratios at the school facility that is the subject of this SOI: 22  students
per teacher


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                5                                        Statement of Interest







Please provide the originally planned student to teacher ratios at the school facility that is the subject of this SOI:
22  students per teacher


Does the District have a Master Educational Plan that includes facility goals for this building and all school
buildings in District? Yes


If "YES", please provide the author and date of the District’s Master Educational Plan.
 The District partnered with Dore and Whittier June 2015 to complete a District Master Plan. This lead the District


to be accepted into the MSBA core building program for the Douglas School. The feasibility study for the Douglas
School completed by Arrowstreet Inc. evaluated the Conant, Gates, and Douglas Schools again. This lead the
District to proposing a twin school building combining the Gates Elementary School with the Douglas Elementary
School in our PSR submittal.


Is there overcrowding at the school facility? Yes
If "YES", please describe in detail, including specific examples of the overcrowding.


The current population of the Conant School is 409 students as of 10/1/2019. There are currently 3 sections of
Kindergarten, Grades 1, 2, 3 and 6, there are 2 sections of grades 4 and 5. These variations in number of sections
across grade levels creates difficult community building activities. To accommodate any specialized programming,
every available space is utilized. Some rooms have been partitioned while others are shared. Some services like
ELL and OT/PT are offered in converted storage areas. One undersized space for upper ASD students is small
office suite of two rooms with no outside window. One shared space for two learning centers also lacks a window
as it was covered by the hallway leading to an aging modular that houses art, a computer lab, speech and reading.
Also, OT/PT must often take place on the stage, as the storage room that was converted to the therapy room is quite
small. We also have very limited meeting space and virtually no quiet breakout space for large group work. To
address overcrowding concerns, the school added a modular with approximately 2,300 SF of additional space. The
modular houses art, computer lab, speech, writing room and a maker space. Ideally, these programs would be
housed in a permanent part of the building in appropriately sized spaces.


Has the district had any recent teacher layoffs or reductions? No
If "YES", how many teaching positions were affected? 0


 At which schools in the district? 
 Please describe the types of teacher positions that were eliminated (e.g., art, math, science, physical education,


etc.).


Has the district had any recent staff layoffs or reductions? No
If "YES", how many staff positions were affected? 0


 At which schools in the district? 
 Please describe the types of staff positions that were eliminated (e.g., guidance, administrative, maintenance,


etc.).


Please provide a description of the program modifications as a consequence of these teacher and/or staff
reductions, including the impact on district class sizes and curriculum.


Does not apply but to elaborate on the above, Acton Public Schools (preK-6), Boxborough Public Schools (preK-6),
and Acton Boxborough Regional Schools (7-12) merged in FY'15 to form the new Acton Boxborough Regional
School District (preK-12). Creating opportunity for some staffing consolidation. Some duplicative positions were
merged and due to to slight declining enrollment ABRSD has been able to decrease a couple of K sections in the past
two years.


Please provide a description of the local budget approval process for a potential capital project with theMSBA.
Include schedule information (i.e. Town Meeting dates, city council/town council meetings dates, regional school
committee meeting dates). Provide, if applicable, the District’s most recent budget approval process that resulted
in a budget reduction and the impact of the reduction to the school district (staff reductions, discontinued
programs, consolidation of facilities).


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                6                                        Statement of Interest







ABRSD FY21 Recommended Budget totals $93,974,777, an increase of 3.29% from FY20. With the additional use of
E&D and other reserves, the overall increase in assessments to the member communities from FY20 is 3.26% increase
to Acton and 1.42% increase to Boxborough.This budget will go to our respective Town Meetings for approval in
Acton and Boxborough in April 2020 and May 2020. To date the ABRSD School Committee has approved this
preliminary budget request and the Finance Committees in Acton and Boxborough, as well as both Boards of
Selectmen, have expressed their respective support for the FY'20 budget request. The process for developing the FY20
budget began in early Fall 2018. This was a collaborative venture that included district administrators, staff, the School
Committee Budget Subcommittee and included the following key actions: • Adoption of the District's Goals to support
its Long Range Strategic Plan • Analysis of FY19 budgetary goals including the change to a single-tier bus system to
support later start times • Establishment of a Capital Planning Subcommittee to continue to review and finalize the
District's Capital Plan • Planning for ongoing financial commitments such as employee contracts and benefits •
Identifying additional staffing requests which support the District's Goals • Soliciting feedback from a variety of
stakeholders including the Budget Subcommittee, School Committee, and local officials


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                7                                        Statement of Interest







General Description


BRIEF BUILDING HISTORY: Please provide a detailed description of when the original building was built,
and the date(s) and project scopes(s) of any additions and renovations (maximum of 5000 characters).


Luther Conant Elementary School was constructed in 1970. The building was reroofed in 1986, with no other
major renovations. Modulars were added in 1995 to address overcrowding issues. 


 Summary:
 • Originally constructed in 1970 


 • Roofing: reroofed in 1986 with no other major renovations
 • Modulars: two units connected together added in 1995 to address overcrowding


 


TOTAL BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE: Please provide the original building square footage PLUS the
square footage of any additions.


54300


SITE DESCRIPTION: Please provide a detailed description of the current site and any known existing
conditions that would impact a potential project at the site. Please note whether there are any other buildings,
public or private, that share this current site with the school facility. What is the use(s) of this building(s)?
(maximum of 5000 characters).


The Conant School is situated on 24.5 acres. There are two points of entry, both from Taylor Road. The main entry
drive leads to a circulation loop that also serves as a vehicular loop for drop-off and pick-up, as well as parking.
Circulation in this shared traffic loop is a safety concern for walkers and vehicles navigating the site. It also creates
congestion both on site and onto Taylor Road during pick-up and drop-off times. The secondary entry point
services a small parking lot at the rear of the building.


ADDRESS OF FACILITY: Please type address, including number, street name and city/town, if available, or
describe the location of the site. (Maximum of 300 characters)


80 Taylor Road, Acton, MA 01720


BUILDING ENVELOPE: Please provide a detailed description of the building envelope, types of construction
materials used, and any known problems or existing conditions (maximum of 5000 characters).


Typical exterior walls are constructed of brick veneer over a concrete masonry block back up wall with 2” - 4”
layer of “Zonolite” insulation sandwiched between the inner and outer masonry. Truss type reinforcing is provided
at 16” oc vertically, and the interior is finished with 5/8” Drywall on a 7/8” furring channel (Note that there is no
vapor retarder / air infiltration barrier incorporated into the original design/construction). Exterior walls indicate
some isolated areas showing significant deterioration at brick and mortar.


 Window systems are constructed of both hollow metal (at door sidelights and transoms), and aluminum. The
hollow metal installations are showing a considerable amount of rust and rot. Aluminum systems are not thermally
broken, and in some cases, are damaged. Glazing associated with both types is non-insulated, single pane glass. In
some locations wired glass was utilized, which is no longer recommended. Sealants associated with both types are
showing their age and appear dried and cracked. 


 Exterior Doors are hollow metal in hollow metal frames. Frames are mostly original to the building, are not
thermally broken and are showing signs of deterioration. Remaining original doors are in varying stages of
deterioration and associated hardware (knob) is non-compliant with ADA/MAAB requirements. Thresholds are
deteriorated, and in some cases not ADA/MAAB compliant. Wired glass installed at sidelights is non-insulated. 


 The roof structure of both wings consists of metal deck spanning between bar joists which are supported by wide
flange steel beams and columns. Primary roof systems consist of a stone ballasted EPDM Membrane. The general
condition of the membrane at the ballasted areas is difficult to monitor without some removal of ballast. The


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                8                                        Statement of Interest







condition where the membrane is exposed is in fair to poor condition. Drying and cracking of the membrane,
especially at joints, is prevalent with failure of the membrane in the form of tears. The fascia system is showing
signs of oxidation of the factory finish and is peeling from the metal panels in many locations. 


 
Has there been a Major Repair or Replacement of the EXTERIOR WALLS?     NO
Year of Last Major Repair or Replacement:(YYYY)     1970
Description of Last Major Repair or Replacement:     
No major repair or replacement of exterior walls


Roof Section     A
Is the District seeking replacement of the Roof Section?     YES
Area of Section (square feet)     54300
Type of ROOF (e.g., PVC, EPDM, Shingle, Slate, Tar & Gravel, Other (please describe)     
stone ballasted EPDM roof, EPDM roof (skylights)
Age of Section (number of years since the Roof was installed or replaced)     30
Description of repairs, if applicable, in the last three years. Include year of repair:     
Roofing repairs are made as needed, over the last three years the District has incurred $2,765 in roof repairs


Window Section     A
Is the District seeking replacement of the Windows Section?     YES
Windows in Section (count)     85
Type of WINDOWS (e.g., Single Pane, Double Pane, Other (please describe))     
Hollow metal and aluminum frames with non-insulated, single pane glazing
Age of Section (number of years since the Windows were installed or replaced)     46
Description of repairs, if applicable, in the last three years. Include year of repair:     
Basic break / fix repairs are all that have been completed since original construction.


MECHANICAL and ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS: Please provide a detailed description of the current
mechanical and electrical systems and any known problems or existing conditions (maximum of 5000
characters).


HVAC: The mechanical equipment, with the exception of the boiler plant and the unit ventilators, are all original to
the building (1969). The boiler plant was replaced in 2007 as well as the unit ventilators and exhaust fans. The
piping system throughout the building is provided with a mix of new fiberglass insulation and original fiberglass
insulation which still has asbestos insulation on the elbows. The school mostly consists of unit ventilators for all of
the classroom spaces, library and the gym, indoor air handling units for the Cafeteria and one rooftop air handler
for the Administration area which provides heating, ventilation and air conditioning for that area only. The IT
room off the lobby is served by a rooftop heat pump. The rooftop unit and indoor air handling units are associated
with duct distribution systems for the supply and return air. The Administration area is a constant volume single
zone system with temperature control for the entire administrative suite controlled from one location. Exhaust air
is provided throughout the building through the use of roof mounted exhaust fans. The buildings overall
temperature control system is handled by a limited amount of original pneumatic controls and standalone
electronic controls. Overall the equipment is functional however, there is an issue with the exhaust fan central
timeclock being inoperative. It appears that the building has received average maintenance over the years however,
some components are beginning to fail or show signs of possible future issues. The building is not provided with a
cooling plant. The Administration area and the Guidance Office are the only spaces that are provided with
packaged roof top units which deliver air conditioning to those areas.


 Electrical: Most of the systems are original to the buildings and although functioning, have outlived its intended
useful life. The power distribution system is original and in poor condition. Interior lighting is generally in poor
condition. The fire alarm system is original. Due to code changes, the emergency standby systems are no longer
code compliant.


 Plumbing: The Plumbing Systems serving the building are cold water, hot water, sanitary, waste and vent system,
storm drain piping, and natural gas. Municipal water services the Building, while the building sanitary is directed
to a site septic system. The majority of the plumbing systems appear to be original to the building. Portions of the


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                9                                        Statement of Interest







system have been updated as part of building upgrade projects. The plumbing systems in general have served their
useful life. 
Attempts have been made to make some bathroom fixtures accessible, however, the majority of plumbing fixtures
do not meet current accessibility codes. In general, the fixtures appear to have served their useful life. 


 Cast iron is used for sanitary and storm drainage. Rainwater from flat roof areas is collected by interior rain leaders
which appear to discharge to a below grade drainage system. 
Fire Protection: The building does not contain an automatic sprinkler system. 


 
Boiler Section     1
Is the District seeking replacement of the Boiler?     NO
Is there more than one boiler room in the School?     NO
What percentage of the School is heated by the Boiler?     100
Type of heating fuel (e.g., Heating Oil, Natural Gas, Propane, Other)     
Natural Gas
Age of Boiler (number of years since the Boiler was installed or replaced)     9
Description of repairs, if applicable, in the last three years. Include year of repair:     
School Currently has High Efficiency Viessman Condensing Boilers installed in 2007 and we are not seeking
replacement at this time. These could be potentially reused if the building is renovated or replaced. Routine
annual maintenance / preventative maintenance and inspection have been the only necessary repairs since
installation in 2007.


Has there been a Major Repair or Replacement of the HVAC SYSTEM?     YES
Year of Last Major Repair or Replacement:(YYYY)     2007
Description of Last Major Repair or Replacement:     
Replaced boilers, pneumatics control air compressor, and unit ventilators at classrooms


Has there been a Major Repair or Replacement of the ELECTRICAL SERVICES AND
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM?     NO
Year of Last Major Repair or Replacement:(YYYY)     1970
Description of Last Major Repair or Replacement:     
N/A


BUILDING INTERIOR: Please provide a detailed description of the current building interior including a
description of the flooring systems, finishes, ceilings, lighting, etc. (maximum of 5000 characters).


Flooring varies in type and condition throughout the building. Classrooms, cafeteria, corridors, vestibules, and
lobby areas are primarily 12” x 12” vinyl composition tile (VCT), mostly original, and in primarily poor condition.
The gym wood sports floor is original. The wood stage floor is in fair condition. 


 Ceiling types consist of suspended acoustical panels (ACP), metal lath and plaster (at skylights, and gang toilet
rooms), suspended Tectum panels (gymnasium and Cafetorium), and exposed metal deck (boiler room, service
areas). The ceilings in general are worn. 


 Lighting is generally in poor condition. Lighting in corridors consists of wraparound fixtures. Classroom lighting
and offices consist of surface mounted 2 ft. x 4 ft. acrylic troffers with two lamp cross sections of T8 fluorescent
lamps. Typically lighting is controlled via local line voltage switches. Lighting in the cafeteria consists of 1 ft. x
4ft. acrylic troffers. Also, there are recessed downlights installed.


 Interior doors are mostly original solid core wood doors with knob hardware and lack door closers. Many doors are
scuffed or showing signs of veneer damage.


 Built-in casework and counters vary from fair to poor condition depending on age and location. 
 Although attempts have been made to meet accessibility standards, many issues still remain that are non-


conforming with current ADA/MAAB requirements. Issues include maneuvering space, urinal screens, grab bars,
toilet accessories, door hardware, drinking fountains and signage. 


PROGRAMS and OPERATIONS: Please provide a detailed description of the current grade structure and
programs offered and indicate whether there are program components that cannot be offered due to facility


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                10                                        Statement of Interest







constraints, operational constraints, etc. (maximum of 5000 characters).
The Luther Conant School serves 409 students in grades K-6 and employs a total of 68 employees made up of
Classroom Teachers, Special Educators, Support Staff, and Administrators. The Elementary Curriculum includes
Educational Technology, English Language Arts, Health, Mathematics, Performing Arts, Physical Education,
Science, Engineering & Technology, Social Studies, and Visual Arts. Due to space constraints within the original
building, modular classrooms are located on site to provide a computer lab, art, speech, and resource rooms. 


 The Luther Conant School is an elementary school that serves students in grades K – 6. It offers full special
education programing through two learning centers, two classrooms for children on the Autism spectrum, OT and
PT services and speech and language services. There is a high population of ELL students. Regular education
services via a Reading specialist, Math assistant and Writing assistant are also offered. Although many services are
offered, the spaces in which they are offered are unsuitably small and limiting. OT and PT must often use the stage
because their classroom, which is housed in a former storage area, is too small. The stage is attached to the
cafetorium so students often cannot receive services there, as lunch noise is too distracting. Many services take
place in former storage areas, which limits our ability to easily add students who need interventions to groups,
instead reworking schedules to accommodate new children. Several spaces are shared which creates scheduling
and quality of instruction issues. Staffing issues have been identified and in the next budget cycle we will be
looking to add more ELL and special education support for students. There are no additional spaces available for
these programs. Also, poor ventilation, an aging roof, single pane windows, inefficient uni-vents and rotting door
frames make it very difficult to regulate a comfortable temperature throughout the year especially in overcrowded
and repurposed spaces.


 At this time program types are limited for some individuals due to the building being wheelchair inaccessible. It is
believed that the quality of some of our programming is affected by our facility for all students.


 


EDUCATIONAL SPACES: Please provide a detailed description of the Educational Spaces within the facility,
a description of the number and sizes (in square feet) of classrooms, a description of science rooms/labs
including ages and most recent updates, a description of the cafeteria, gym and/or auditorium and a
description of the media center/library (maximum of 5000 characters).


There are 3 kindergarten classrooms averaging 1,007 SF. There are 16 general classrooms for grades 1- 6. Sizes
range between 852 SF and 1,058 SF. There are approximately 17-18 kindergarten students per class, and between
21-25 students per class in Grades 1-6. 


 The library and associated spaces total 1,609 SF and are located centrally but internally, therefore they do not
receive any natural light. Only one class can utilize the library at a time which limits grade level activities in the
space.


 Cafetorium, platform and associated storage totals 4,030 SF which is undersized for the population. This is the
only all school assembly space and it currently does not adequately contain the entire school population with
associated staff.


 Gymnasium is 3,852 SF, which is undersized for the population.
 


CAPACITY and UTILIZATION: Please provide the original design capacity and a detailed description of the
current capacity and utilization of the school facility. If the school is overcrowded, please describe steps taken
by the administration to address capacity issues. Please also describe in detail any spaces that have been
converted from their intended use to be used as classroom space (maximum of 5000 characters).


The current population of the Conant School is 409 students as of 10/1/2019. There are currently 3 sections of
Kindergarten, Grades 1, 2, 3 and 6, there are 2 sections of grades 4 and 5. These variations in number of sections
across grade levels creates difficult community building activities. To accommodate any specialized programming,
every available space is utilized. Some rooms have been partitioned while others are shared. Some services like
ELL and OT/PT are offered in converted storage areas. One undersized space for upper ASD students is small
office suite of two rooms with no outside window. One shared space for two learning centers also lacks a window
as it was covered by the hallway leading to an aging modular that houses art, a computer lab, speech and reading.
Also, OT/PT must often take place on the stage, as the storage room that was converted to the therapy room is
quite small. We also have very limited meeting space and virtually no quiet breakout space for large group work.
To address overcrowding concerns, the school added a modular with approximately 2,300 SF of additional space.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                11                                        Statement of Interest







The modular houses art, computer lab, speech, writing room and a maker space. Ideally, these programs would be
housed in a permanent part of the building in appropriately sized spaces.


MAINTENANCE and CAPITAL REPAIR: Please provide a detailed description of the district’s current
maintenance practices, its capital repair program, and the maintenance program in place at the facility that is
the subject of this SOI. Please include specific examples of capital repair projects undertaken in the past,
including any override or debt exclusion votes that were necessary (maximum of 5000 characters).


The District provides regular maintenance and cleaning as needed. At Conant the District employees a day shift
lead custodian and a 2nd shift evening custodian. The District also has a licensed plumber, electrician and HVAC
system technician to provide in house repairs, saving the District on maintenance and repairs that would otherwise
need to be outsourced. All of the critical health and safety capital projects identified at Conant in the most recent
facilities assessment have been addressed. There are no new capital projects planned for the facility at this time.
Although Conant could desperately use updated window systems and other newly advanced building systems in
general, capital projects are not the issue at Conant as compared to the general need for programmatic space
requirements that the current footprint does not allow for. The District budgets and staffs adequately to provide the
general annual maintenance and cleaning the building requires annually. 


  
Capital planning at a District level has been a major initiative for ABRSD. The district engaged in a Master
Planning Process several years ago that identified extensive capital needs across schools throughout the district.
Subsequently, the district increased its Capital Appropriation each year in order to fund many of the projects
identified through the planning process. During the same time period, the district began to develop a
comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan that identifies critical projects as well as a funding strategy in order to
accomplish the work.


  
This proposed budget includes a comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan, an increase in the as well as a
proposed funding strategy that will allow the district to complete approximately $21 million in Capital Projects
over the next thirteen years.


  


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                12                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 2


Question 1: Please describe the existing conditions that constitute severe overcrowding.


The Luther Conant School utilizes every available space for learning and break-out space, including
hallways, converted storage rooms and modular classroom spaces. Often these spaces are inadequate, as
space constrains and lack of acoustical separation limit how and when a space can be occupied. 


The Luther Conant School offers full special education programing through two learning centers, two
classrooms for children on the Autism spectrum, OT and PT services and speech and language services.
There is a high population of ELL students. Regular education services via a Reading specialist, Math
assistant and Writing assistant are also offered. Although many services are offered, the spaces in which
they are offered are unsuitably small and limiting. OT and PT must often use the stage because their
classroom, which is housed in a former storage area, is too small. The stage is attached to the cafetorium so
students often cannot receive services there, as lunch noise is too distracting. Many services take place in
former storage areas, which limits our ability to easily add students who need interventions to groups, instead
reworking schedules to accommodate new children. Several spaces are shared which creates scheduling
and quality of instruction issues. Staffing issues have been identified and in the next budget cycle we will be
looking to add more ELL and special education support. There are no additional spaces available for these
programs.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                13                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 2


Question 2: Please describe the measures the School District has taken to mitigate the problem(s) described above.


To reduce space constraints, the District added approximately 2,300 SF with modulars to accommodate art,
computer lab, speech and writing. This is not ideal however as many of these spaces are inadequate for an
entire class to occupy and one is required to pass through and potentially interrupt the art space to access
the other rooms.     


Staffing issues have been identified and in the next budget cycle we will be looking to add more ELL and
special education support however there are no additional spaces available for these programs so crowded
spaces will become more crowded.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                14                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 2


Question 3: Please provide a detailed explanation of the impact of the problem described in this priority on your
district's educational program. Please include specific examples of how the problem prevents the district from
delivering the educational program it is required to deliver and how students and/or teachers are directly affected by
the problem identified.


There are no additional spaces available for the ELL and special education programs causing crowded
spaces to become even more crowded. The spaces are filled beyond capacity, distracting and
noisy.   Instructional modular spaces are compact often shared by multiple teachers and programs creating
distractions for teachers and students.  Hallway spaces use dividers and lack privacy and resources that
would be found in a classroom such as whiteboards, smartboards, and proper storage.  The cafeteria is also
the only large assembly space and does not adequately hold the total population for an all school meeting. 
Spaces that have been reallocated often lack adequate acoustical separation and/or natural light.


Please also provide the following:
  


Cafeteria Seating Capacity: 170
Number of lunch seatings per day: 3
Are modular units currently present on-site and being used for classroom space?: NO


If "YES", indicate the number of years that the modular units have been in use: 23
Number of Modular Units: 2
Classroom count in Modular Units: 4
Seating Capacity of Modular classrooms: 23
What was the original anticipated useful life in years of the modular units when they were installed?: 15


Have non-traditional classroom spaces been converted to be used for classroom space?: NO
If "YES", indicate the number of non-traditional classroom spaces in use: 5
Please provide a description of each non-traditional classroom space, its originally-intended use and how it is
currently used (maximum of 1000 characters).:


Three spaces originally intended for storage have been converted to ELL, OT/PT, and reading support. The
original staff collaboration, meeting, and break space has been converted into 2 learning centers for special
education. Space originally intended for art or music has now been converted into a “Connections” District-
wide special education program. We have ELL, OT/PT and some reading support in converted storage areas.
Our connections programs are in small converted spaces when they should be in larger classrooms.


  
Regarding the modulars, The modular spaces serve non-traditional classroom uses. Art space can serve one
grade level class, the computer lab can also serve one grade level class, and the speech and writing is for
additional small instruction or pull out instruction.


Please explain any recent changes to the district’s educational program, school assignment polices, grade
configurations, class size policy, school closures, changes in administrative space, or any other changes that
impact the district’s enrollment capacity (maximum of 5000 characters).:


The communities of Acton and Boxborough fully regionalized their educational system preK – 12 starting Fiscal
Year 2015 (July 1, 2014). Previously the Acton-Boxborough Regional School District consisted of grades 9 – 12.
Full preK – 12 regionalization has had minor impacts on the District’s elementary school choice program.


What are the district’s current class size policies (maximum of 500 characters)?:
The School Committee has a commitment to provide the highest quality education for our children. The
Committee recognizes that desirable class sizes are a necessary part of the growth and development of the
individual student. Therefore, the committee recommends that elementary classes are kept within the following
ranges. Attainment of class sizes within these ranges shall, however, be dependent on budget and space
considerations.Class size ranges: K 18-20 students G 1-3 20-22 G 4-6 22-24


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                15                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 5


Question 1: Please provide a detailed description of the issues surrounding the school facility systems (e.g., roof,
windows, boilers, HVAC system, and/or electrical service and distribution system) that you are indicating require
repair or replacement. Please describe all deficiencies to all systems in sufficient detail to explain the problem.


Window systems are constructed of both hollow metal (at door sidelights and transoms), and aluminum. The
hollow metal installations are showing a considerable amount of rust and rot. Aluminum systems are in much
better shape, however they are not thermally broken, and in some cases, are damaged. Glazing associated
with both types is non-insulated, single pane glass. In some locations wired glass was utilized, which is no
longer recommended. Sealants associated with both types are showing their age and appear dried and
cracked.


The roof structure of both wings consists of metal deck spanning between bar joists which are supported by
wide flange steel beams and columns. Primary roof systems consist of a stone ballasted EPDM Membrane.
The general condition of the membrane at the ballasted areas is difficult to monitor without some removal of
ballast. Where exposed, the membrane exhibits drying and cracking, especially at joints, and is prevalent
with failure of the membrane in the form of tears. The fascia system is showing signs of oxidation of the
factory finish and is peeling from the metal panels in many locations.


The Conant School’s mechanical equipment, with the exception of the boiler plant and the unit ventilators,
are all original to the building.  The boiler plant was replaced in 2007 as well as the unit ventilators and
exhaust fans.  The piping system throughout the building is provided with a mix of new fiberglass insulation
and original fiberglass insulation which still has asbestos insulation on the elbows.  The school mostly
consists of unit ventilators for all the classroom spaces, library and the gym, indoor air handling units for the
Cafeteria and one rooftop air handler for the Administration area which provides heating, ventilation and air
conditioning for that area only.  The IT room off the lobby is served by a rooftop heat pump. The rooftop unit
and indoor air handling units are associated with duct distribution systems for the supply and return air.  The
Administration area is a constant volume single zone system with temperature control for the entire
administrative suite controlled from one location.  Exhaust air is provided throughout the building through the
use of roof mounted exhaust fans. The buildings’ overall temperature control system is handled by a limited
amount of original pneumatic controls and standalone electronic controls. Overall the equipment is functional
however, there is an issue with the exhaust fan central timeclock being inoperative. The building has received
maintenance over the years however some components are beginning to fail or show signs of possible future
issues.


Most of the electrical systems are original to the buildings and although functioning, have outlived its intended
useful life. The power distribution system is original and in poor condition. Interior lighting is generally in poor
condition. The fire alarm system is original. Due to code changes, the emergency standby systems are no
longer code compliant.


The plumbing systems serving the building are cold water, hot water, sanitary, waste and vent system, storm
drain piping, and natural gas.   Municipal water services the building, while the building sanitary is directed to
a site septic system.  The majority of the plumbing systems appear to be original to the building and its
additions.  Portions of the system have been updated as part of building upgrade projects.  The plumbing
systems, while continuing to function, in general have served their useful life. Attempts have been made to
make some bathroom fixtures accessible, however, the majority of fixtures do not meet current accessibility
codes.  In general, the plumbing fixtures appear to have served their useful life. Cast iron is used for sanitary
and storm drainage.  Rainwater from flat roof areas is collected by interior rain leaders which appear to
discharge to a below grade drainage system. 


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                16                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 5


Question 2: Please describe the measures the district has already taken to mitigate the problem/issues described in
Question 1 above.


The school provides maintenance to the facility systems described with in house licensed staff. Many of the
system issues noted are too great for the school to address in its annual budget.  Therefore the District works
very hard to reduce the burden on the annual operating budget by seeking grants to complete energy
efficiency projects, which in turn reduce the operating costs associated with utility bills.  In turn the District
tries to roll savings in the areas of utilities back into the building capital, preventative maintenance, and repair
programs. 


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                17                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 5


Question 3: Please provide a detailed explanation of the impact of the problem/issues described in Question 1 above
on your district’s educational program. Please include specific examples of how the problem prevents the district
from delivering the educational program it is required to deliver and how students and/or teachers are directly
affected by the problem identified.


The Luther Conant School offers full special education programming through two learning centers, two
classrooms for children on the Autism spectrum, OT and PT services and speech and language services.
There is a high population of ELL students. Regular education services via a Reading specialist, Math
assistant and Writing assistant are also offered. Although many services are offered, the spaces in which
they are offered are unsuitably small and limiting. OT and PT must often use the stage because their
classroom, which is housed in a former storage area, is too small. The stage is attached to the cafetorium so
students often cannot receive services there, as lunch noise is too distracting. Many services take place in
former storage areas, which limits our ability to easily add students who need interventions to groups, instead
reworking schedules to accommodate new children. Several spaces are shared which creates scheduling
and quality of instruction issues. Staffing issues have been identified and in the next budget cycle we will be
looking to add more ELL and special education support to meet the continued growing demand. There are no
additional spaces available for these programs. Also, poor ventilation, an aging roof, single pane windows,
inefficient uni-vents and rotting door frames make it very difficult to regulate a comfortable temperature
throughout the year especially in overcrowded and repurposed spaces.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                18                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 5


Question 4: Please describe how addressing the school facility systems you identified in Question 1 above will
extend the useful life of the facility that is the subject of this SOI and how it will improve your district's educational
program.


Every square foot of the building is utilized for educational space, including hallways, converted storage
closets and modulars. If a system or component failure renders an area or space unusable, it would be
detrimental to the operation of the building. Addressing failing systems would create a healthier, more
comfortable and safer educational environment more conducive to learning. The District continues to be
proactive when possible to address maintenance items in a timely manner.  


Please also provide the following:
  


Have the systems identified above been examined by an engineer or other trained building professional?:
NO


If "YES", please provide the name of the individual and his/her professional affiliation (maximum of 250
characters):


Dore & Whittier Architects, Inc. 
  


Garcia, Galuska DeSousa (MEP) 
  


The date of the inspection:
A summary of the findings (maximum of 5000 characters):


Conant School building has had no significant renovation since constructed more than 45 years ago.
Deficiencies in handicap accessibility, thermal envelope, code compliance, and infrastructure such as heating,
ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC), electrical and plumbing systems topped the list of capital
improvement needs. The use of modular classrooms addresses temporary space needs, but is not a viable long-
term solution. A summary of findings is listed below. 


  
Landscape / Civil


  
• Pavement and sidewalks: overall worn and in need of overlay/replacement


  
• Repair curbing, provide curbing where it doesn’t exist


  
• Lack of accessible travel path to building entry


  
• Lack of accessible path to new playground


  
• Circulation – Bus and car traffic share loop drive, consider separation


  
• Screening at service area


  
• Consider separating bus and parent drop offs


  
• Analyze congestion problems, possibly provide second access drive to site


  
• Consider new full depth pavement at receiving area and access


  


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                19                                        Statement of Interest







• No continuous path around building
  


Structural
  


• Some cracking/spalling in foundation walls throughout the structure
  


• Cracking in brick and concrete slab at several egress doors from classroom pods
  


• Severe cracking in two locations due to heaving of foundation walls
  


HVAC
  


• Combustion air damper undersized for boiler plant
  


• Piping insulation removed throughout building
  


• Problematic pneumatic control system
  


• Damaged time clock controlling rooftop exhaust fans
  


• No ventilation in administration area in winter
  


• Original AHU at café/kitchen are problematic and harder to fix
  


• Kitchen hood runs at full speed, wasting energy
  


Electrical
  


• Original power and distribution system - overall in fair condition
  


• Upgrade lighting with LED and provide occupancy and dimming sensors
  


• Emergency standby system is no longer code compliant; provide emergency lighting in toilet and public
spaces


  
• Fire alarm system to be updated and comply with ADA and battery back-up requirements


  
• Provide lightning protection system


  
Plumbing


  
• Consider high efficiency low flow fixtures throughout that meet ADA


  
• Provide new domestic water distribution piping and insulation 


  
• The kitchen drainage piping shall be directed to an exterior grease trap


  
Fire Protection


  
• Building does not have a sprinkler system 
 
Architectural


  
• Doors and windows with single pane glass are in fair to poor condition – replacement warranted


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                20                                        Statement of Interest







 
• Replace ballasted EPDM roof, increase insulation; add lightning protection


  
• Finishes/built-ins range in condition


  
• HC accessibility - toilet rooms; water fountains; casework; side clearances at doors; signage


  
Food Service


  
• Kitchen equipment is mostly original and somewhat antiquated


  
Hazardous Materials


  
• Suspect materials are expected due to building age but maintained well. Prior to any repairs, check AHERA
reports and perform testing if needed. 
 


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                21                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 7


Question 1: Please provide a detailed description of the programs not currently available due to facility constraints,
the state or local requirement for such programs, and the facility limitations precluding the programs from being
offered.


All required programming is offered. The spaces however for some programs are not appropriate thus limiting
the opportunities for programming expansion and improvement. More apparatus are needed for OT/PT and
for our Connections Program but we are not able to fit them in. For example, a sensory swing would be
useful to both programs but there is nowhere to install one.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                22                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 7


Question 2: Please describe the measures the district has taken or is planning to take in the immediate future to
mitigate the problem(s) described above.


The District has worked with Dore & Whittier to develop a Capital Improvement Plan and divided it into three
different priorities, to be completed over time:


Priority 1: 0-2 years


Priority 2: 3-6 years


Priority 3: 7+ years


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                23                                        Statement of Interest







Priority 7


Question 3: Please provide a detailed explanation of the impact of the problem described in this priority on your
district's educational program. Please include specific examples of how the problem prevents the district from
delivering the educational program it is required to deliver and how students and/or teachers are directly affected by
the problem identified.


The Conant School is currently offering the programming required for our students. However, as it has been
stated, the available spaces for some programs limit their ability to improve and grow. Also, we have
identified a need for more ELL and SPED support in the next budget cycle. While having the staff to address
these issues is a great addition to the building, we do not currently have spaces for them. This will require
possible reallocation of storage space, or redistribution of service provider areas resulting in smaller, more
crowded or shared spaces.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                24                                        Statement of Interest







Vote


REQUIRED FORM OF VOTE TO SUBMIT AN SOI


REQUIRED VOTES
 


If the SOI is being submitted by a City or Town, a vote in the following form is required from both the


City Council/Board of Aldermen OR the Board of Selectmen/equivalent governing body AND the School


Committee.


If the SOI is being submitted by a regional school district, a vote in the following form is required from the


Regional School Committee only. FORM OF VOTE Please use the text below to prepare your City’s,


Town’s or District’s required vote(s).


FORM OF VOTE
 


Please use the text below to prepare your City’s, Town’s or District’s required vote(s).


Resolved: Having convened in an open meeting on ___________________, prior to the closing date, the
 


_________________________________________________________________[City Council/Board of Aldermen,


Board of Selectmen/Equivalent Governing Body/School Committee] of  ___________________________[City/Town], in accordance


with its charter, by-laws, and ordinances, has voted to authorize the Superintendent to submit to the


Massachusetts School Building Authority the Statement of Interest dated _____________ for the


__________________________________[Name of School] located at


_____________________________________________________________________[Address] which


describes and explains the following deficiencies and the priority category(s) for which an application may


be submitted to the Massachusetts School Building Authority in the future


_______________________________________________________________________________________


_______________________________________________________________________________________


_______________________________________________________________________________________


_______________________________________________________________________________________


_______________________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________; [Insert a description of the priority(s) checked off on


the Statement of Interest Form and a brief description of the deficiency described therein for each priority]; and hereby further specifically


acknowledges that by submitting this Statement of Interest Form, the Massachusetts School Building


Authority in no way guarantees the acceptance or the approval of an application, the awarding of a grant or


any other funding commitment from the Massachusetts School Building Authority, or commits the


City/Town/Regional School District to filing an application for funding with the Massachusetts School


Building Authority.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                25                                        Statement of Interest







CERTIFICATIONS


The undersigned hereby certifies that, to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief, the statements and
information contained in this statement of Interest and attached hereto are true and accurate and that this Statement of
Interest has been prepared under the direction of the district school committee and the undersigned is duly authorized to
submit this Statement of Interest to the Massachusetts School Building Authority. The undersigned also hereby
acknowledges and agrees to provide the Massachusetts School Building Authority, upon request by the Authority, any
additional information relating to this Statement of Interest that may be required by the Authority.


Chief Executive Officer * School Committee Chair Superintendent of Schools 


  
   
(signature) (signature) (signature)


Date Date Date 


* Local chief executive officer: In a city or town with a manager form of government, the manager of the
municipality; in other cities, the mayor; and in other towns, the board of selectmen unless, in a city or town,
some other municipal office is designated to the chief executive office under the provisions of a local charter.
Please note, in districts where the Superintendent is also the Local Chief Executive Officer, it is required for
the same person to sign the Statement of Interest Certifications twice.


  Name of School         ---- - SAMPLE SCHOOL[DRAFT]---- -


  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                0                                        Statement of Interest  Massachusetts School Building Authority                                                26                                        Statement of Interest







 


 
At ABRSD, our mission is to develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships. 


WELLNESS     -     EQUITY     -     ENGAGEMENT 


ACTON-BOXBOROUGH	REGIONAL	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
School	Building	Committee	(SBC)	


	
Virtual	Public	Webinar	Meeting	
*To	attend: https://zoom.us/j/100766158 
Administration	Building	Auditorium	 March	25,	2020	
15	Charter	Road,	Acton,	MA	01720				 	 	 																									 														 	 	 											7:00	p.m.	
Members	Present:			 Mary	Brolin;	Adam	Klein;	Amy	Krishnamurthy;	Maya	Minkin;	Peter	Light;	Marie	Altieri;	


Peter	Berry;	Dennis	Bruce;	Jason	Cole;	Bob	Evans;	Bill	Hart;	JD	Head;	Gary	Kushner;	Lynne	
Newman;	Maria	Neyland;	Katie	Raymond;	Mac	Reid;	Chris	Whitbeck.	
	


Members	Absent:			 Becca	Edson.	
	


Other:	 Karen	Coll;	Representatives	from	Skanska:	Chuck	Adam,	Sovathya	Sar,	Vincent	
Vadeboncoeur;	Representatives	from	Arrowstreet:	Emily	Grandstaff-Rice,	Larry	Spang;	
Representative	from	Consigli:	Jody	Staruk,	Kristy	Lyons;	members	of	the	public.	


	 		
1. Mary	Brolin	called	the	meeting	to	order	at	7:03pm.		Some	attendees	were	not	experienced	with	Zoom,	so	


she	gave	a	brief	explanation	about	how	to	participate	in	a	Zoom	meeting.			
	
Emily	Grandstaff-Rice	emphasized	that	the	Arrowstreet	team	is	still	working,	although	on	a	remote	basis.		The	
project	is	moving	forward	and	is	still	meeting	planned	schedule	targets.	They	are	in	contact	with	the	Acton	town	
boards	and	hoping	that	the	coronavirus	situation	won’t	slow	things	down.		Chuck	Adam	said	that	Skanska	is	
working	also,	as	is	the	MSBA.	Kristy	Lyons	said	that	Consigli	is	also	working	at	full	strength,	and	they	are	
monitoring	the	potential	impact	of	the	shutdown	on	the	procurement	of	materials.		Governor	Baker	has	
included	construction	on	the	list	of	essential	functions.		Larry	Spang	and	Kristy	said	that	they	are	monitoring	the	
construction	market	to	see	if	there	may	be	any	pricing	reductions	due	to	the	shutdown.		The	uncertainty	makes	
it	difficult	for	the	estimators	to	assess	where	the	market	will	be	moving.			
	
2. Design	Recap	and	Updates	–	Emily	Grandstaff-Rice	
Emily	showed	new,	more	detailed,	renderings	of	the	front	and	back	exterior	views.		In	the	front,	there	will	be	an	
entry	court	similar	to	the	one	at	the	PDB,	which	is	occasionally	used	for	outdoor	recess	activities.		She	reviewed	
the	color	theory	for	each	of	the	floors	and	the	connecting	colors.		The	architects	have	been	fleshing	out	
renderings	of	the	various	spaces.		They	are	expanding	the	level	of	detail	in	the	2-story	media	center,	including	
the	color	theory,	and	are	determining	where	reading	groupings	and	huddle	rooms/conference	rooms	will	be.	
The	cafeteria	and	learning	commons	are	also	being	further	developed,	as	are	the	classrooms.		
	
Katie	Raymond	asked	about	the	fence	enclosing	the	front	circle.		Emily	said	that	there	will	be	a	fence	on	one	side	
and	a	traffic	barrier	on	the	other.		She	noted	that	there	is	a	change	in	elevation	between	the	walking	path	and	
the	bus	circle.		The	fence	creates	a	protected	zone	around	the	bus	circle,	which	is	important	if	children	will	be	
playing	there,	and	it	also	allows	a	safer	pedestrian	walking	path.			
	
The	MSBA	provides	reimbursement	incentives	to	schools	that	meet	energy	efficiency	guidelines.		There	are	two	
programs:		LEED	(Leadership	in	Energy	and	Environmental	Design)	and	CHPS	(Collaborative	for	High	Performance	
Schools).		We	will	be	following	the	CHPS	rating	system,	and	Emily	reviewed	the	program	and	its	requirements.	







 


 
At ABRSD, our mission is to develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships. 


WELLNESS     -     EQUITY     -     ENGAGEMENT 


Unlike	LEED,	CHPS	specifically	focuses	on	schools,	viewing	them	as	specific	types	of	buildings	with	a	unique	
function	and	population	of	users.	The	program	also	fits	with	our	triple	net	zero	goals,	requiring	demonstrated	
excellence	in	energy	and	water	use,	waste	management	and	other	environmental	health	and	sustainability	
metrics.		We	are	currently	on	track	to	earn	a	‘verified	leader’	rating	on	the	CHPS	scorecard,	with	163	points	out	
of	a	possible	250	points;	Emily	noted	that	no	building	receives	all	250	points.	The	design	and	construction	teams	
and	the	district	will	continue	to	collaborate	to	determine	which	specific	CHPS	points	are	achievable.		The	project	
will	be	submitted	to	CHPS	for	a	design	review	at	the	end	of	the	Construction	Document	phase,	with	a	final	
review	at	the	end	of	construction.			
	
3. Permits/Meetings	with	Acton	Town	Depts	–	Mary	Brolin/Emily	Grandstaff-Rice	
Emily	said	that	no	town	permitting	meetings	are	scheduled	for	right	now.		Some	of	the	meetings	coming	up	will	
be	with	the	Conservation	Commission	and	the	Board	of	Health	about	the	septic	system	and	the	well	permits.		
Chuck	said	that	the	town	has	already	hired	one	peer	reviewer	and	will	probably	bring	on	a	second	reviewer;	he	
will	bring	those	invoices	to	the	SBC.		
	
4. Trade	Contractor	Prequalification	Updates	–Chuck	Adam	
Chuck	received	prequalification	packages	from	seven	electrical	contractors	last	week.		The	packages	have	been	
sent	to	the	prequalification	subcommittee	for	review	and	Sovathya	Sar	has	sent	out	reference	requests.		All	of	
the	firms	seem	strong.	Once	they’ve	been	prequalified,	we	will	ask	them	to	submit	bids.	The	SBC	does	not	have	
to	vote	on	the	selection	of	an	electrical	contractor.		Larry	Spang	asked	whether	we	would	need	a	vote	on	the	
enabling	set	of	drawings	before	they	go	out	to	bid;	Chuck	said	that	would	not	be	necessary.			
	
5. Modular	Update	
Chuck	said	that,	of	five	prospective	contractors,	we	had	expected	to	receive	three	bids	but	only	received	one.	
This	doesn’t	pose	a	problem	as	the	firm	is	very	qualified.		We	had	asked	for	pricing	on	both	lease	and	purchase	
options.		The	pricing	to	lease	the	modulars	for	24	months,	including	installation	of	walkways,	was	$928,807.		
Surprisingly,	the	cost	to	purchase	the	units	outright	was	significantly	less,	$276,832	plus	up	to	an	additional	
$100,000	for	electrical,	phone	and	data	connections.		The	electrical	work	would	have	to	be	included	in	the	
current	electrical	trade	bids.		Chuck	said	that	the	likely	reason	it	would	cost	so	much	less	to	buy	the	modulars	is	
that	the	firm	may	have	had	units	coming	offline	from	another	project	that	they	wanted	to	get	rid	of.		It’s	likely	
that	we	would	have	other	uses	for	these	modulars	after	the	building	project	ends.		We	had	budgeted	about	
$1MM,	so	this	would	be	a	significant	savings	to	the	project.		Peter	Light	will	bring	this	to	the	School	Committee.	
	
Adam	Klein	asked	how	long	the	bids	would	be	valid;	60	days.	Gary	Kushner	asked	if	there	would	be	additional	
costs	for	preparing	site	for	modular;	Chuck	said	that	installation	is	included	in	the	purchase,	which	covers	the	
foundation,	all	building	permits	and	other	related	costs.			
	
6. Schedule	Updates	–	Chuck	Adam	
Emily	and	Chuck	reviewed	the	project	schedule.	The	pricing	set	was	sent	to	the	estimators	on	March	25th;	we	
will	get	the	estimates	back	on	April	22nd	and	will	send	the	detailed	design	to	the	MSBA	by	April	30th.		The	MSBA	
will	have	three	weeks	to	review	it	and	send	us	their	comments,	and	we	will	then	have	two	weeks	to	respond.	If	
the	estimates	come	in	higher	than	we	expect	on	April	22nd,	we	can	either	accept	the	estimates	as	they	are	or	
make	reductions;	the	MSBA	will	ask	us	how	we	plan	to	get	from	those	estimated	prices	to	the	final	cost.		







 


 
At ABRSD, our mission is to develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships. 


WELLNESS     -     EQUITY     -     ENGAGEMENT 


Skanska,	Arrowstreet	and	Consigli	will	review	the	estimates	and,	if	necessary,	draw	up	a	list	of	potential	changes	
we	could	make	to	the	design.			
	
Larry	Spang	said	that	the	enabling	and	septic	packages	will	be	issued	on	April	7th.		These	packages	are	for	
preparation	of	the	site	for	the	septic	installation,	traffic	and	parking,	and	demolition	that	will	allow	construction	
to	proceed.		Then	we	will	transition	to	developing	construction	documents,	which	have	to	be	submitted	to	the	
MSBA	at	the	60%	and	90%	milestones.		These	documents	are	scheduled	to	be	completed	and	submitted	with	
the	Guaranteed	Maximum	Price	(GMP)	on	October	15th.		
	
Jason	Cole	asked	Peter	Light	whether	the	current	school	closure	until	May	4th	might	be	further	extended	and	
whether,	if	so,	there	is	a	possibility	of	starting	construction	earlier	than	planned.		Peter	said	that	there	is	no	
concrete	information	at	this	point	so	he	can’t	make	a	prediction.		The	amount	of	lead	time	Skanska	and	Consigli	
would	need	to	start	construction	if	school	were	out	through	the	end	of	the	year	would	depend	on	when	
Arrowstreet	can	finalize	documents	for	pricing;	Chuck	said	they	will	have	those	discussions	if	it	appears	schools	
won’t	reopen	this	year.		Jody	Staruk	said	that	the	prep	work	could	start	earlier	and	go	more	quickly	than	planned	
if	students	aren’t	on	site.	Dennis	Bruce	asked	what	would	happen	if	schools	stayed	open	until	June	30.	Peter	
Light	said	that	the	current	state	requirement	is	that	schools	remain	open	until	the	185th	day,	the	date	the	school	
year	would	originally	have	ended	in	the	event	of	five	snow	days.	In	our	district,	that	will	be	June	23rd.	Peter	
noted	that	the	School	Committee	could	elect	to	keep	schools	open	past	June	23rd,	but	that	there	is	a	financial	
cost	of	additional	school	days	of	about	$300K	per	day.			
	
Peter	Berry	asked	if	there	were	currently	any	active	contracts.		Chuck	said	that	no	contracts	have	been	let,	so	
there	is	no	need	to	revise	anything	now.		Peter	also	asked	if	the	schedule	would	be	revised	in	the	event	of	delays	
or	supply	problems;	Chuck	said	there	were	too	many	unknowns	to	make	that	determination	at	this	point.		
	
7. Minutes	–	Approve	Minutes	from	Previous	Meeting(s)	–	Mary	Brolin	
Amy	Krishnamurthy	moved,	Adam	Klein	seconded	and	the	minutes	of	the	March	11,	2020	SBC	meeting	were	
unanimously	approved	as	written.			
	
8. Invoice	Approval/Budget	Update	–	Arrowstreet,	Skanska,	Consigli	and	other	Invoices	–	Mary	Brolin,	Chuck	


Adam	
There	were	no	invoices	to	approve.		Sovathya	Sar	reviewed	a	sample	of	the	budget	tracker	and	invoice	package.		
The	budget	tracker	shows	cash	flow	from	the	beginning	of	the	project	through	the	end	of	construction,	as	well	
as	several	other	markers	such	as	the	expenditure	status	for	each	of	the	three	major	contractors.		The	invoice	
package	includes	a	cover	sheet	and	each	of	the	current	invoices,	followed	by	detailed	backup	for	the	cash	flow	
analysis	and	an	updated	MSBA	master	schedule.		Sovathya	said	that	this	was	representative	of	the	information	
we’ll	be	getting	with	each	updated	invoice	package.			
	
Gary	Kushner	asked	if	the	total	cost	by	grouping	included	the	cost	of	the	modulars;	Chuck	said	that	it	did.			
	
9. Adjourn	
Mary	asked	if	members	of	the	public	had	questions	or	comments;	they	did	not.		Mary	said	that	we	had	taken	a	
planned	meeting	on	April	22nd	off	the	schedule	because	it	was	school	vacation	week,	but	people	are	now	







 


 
At ABRSD, our mission is to develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships. 


WELLNESS     -     EQUITY     -     ENGAGEMENT 


unlikely	to	be	away	that	week.		She	polled	members	to	see	if	they	could	meet	on	April	22nd.		Most	said	they	
would	be	available	on	that	night,	so	the	April	22nd	meeting	has	been	added	back	to	our	schedule.			
	
Adam	Klein	moved,	Maria	Neyland	seconded	and	the	meeting	was	adjourned	at	8:06pm.			
	
Respectfully	submitted,	
Karen	Coll	
	
Documents	Used:	
Draft	Minutes	of	the	March	11,	2020	SBC	Meeting	
Budget	Tracker	and	Invoice	Package	
	
Next	Building	Committee	Meetings			(all	in	Administration	Building	Auditorium	at	7	pm	unless	noted):			
April	8,	2020	–	cancelled	
April	22,	2020	
April	29,	2020	
May	13,	2020	
May	27,	2020	
June	10,	2020	
June	24,	2020	
	







 


Acton-Boxborough      
     Regional School District     Finance Department  
                 David A. Verdolino, Director      


15 Charter Road  -  Acton, MA  01720          (978) 264-4700 
     www.abschools.org     dverdolino@abschools.org  


 
April 16, 2020 
 
To: School Committee Chair 
From: Dave Verdolino /dav/ 
Re: School Committee Agenda - Warrants 
 
Members – 
 
Below please find a summary of warrants for which I am respectfully requesting your 
consideration and approval at tonight’s regular meeting. 
 
The Warrant Subcommittee has previously reviewed these warrants, for the purpose of check 
distribution.  A majority of the Subcommittee conveyed their approval electronically and the 
related disbursements have been made.  The full School Committee should vote its 
authorization of these expenditures of budgeted and other funds in its custody.  All members 
have received for each warrant the information provided as shown below, namely: 
 


1. (for vendor warrants, including payroll withholding remittances) 
- Declining balance register of payments (“Declining Dollar report”) 
- Warrant detail (payments by vendor) 


2. (payroll) 
- Payroll Warrant summary 


 
As you know, these Warrants are customarily provided to you in hard copy format for your 
review and manual signature.  Obtaining your approval in this manner will eliminate the 
future need to produce what could be many paper reports, all requiring your signatures. 
 
Thank you for your consideration and cooperation with this request. 
 
Warrant Type Date  Warrant #   Amount 
 
PAYROLL  3/26/20 P2020    $2,647,722.64 


4/09/20 P2021    $2,613,947.97 
 


VENDOR  3/26/20 20-020PR (deductions) $1,079,510.06 
4/09/20 20-021PR   $   525,390.86 
 
3/19/20 20-019 (regular vendors) $   529,928.02 
4/02/20 20-020   $1,610,681.91 







Staff and Choice 
in total Column


Actual Acton-Boxborough Grade K-6 4/1/20202


Grade Blanchard Total Conant Total Douglas Total Gates Total McCarthy Total Merriam Total Total #SecAvg. Size


ADK ADK ADK AM ADK AM ADK AM ADK AM ADK AM ADK AM


38 18 47 7 44 10 32 7 45 8 51 4


K 20 19 17 56 18 19 18 55 18 18 18 54 19 20 39 19 17 17 53 19 16 19 55 312 17 18.4


12 2 1 1 4 1 21


Gr. 1 21 20 20 19 80 21 21 20 62 22 21 43 21 21 42 20 21 21 62 20 21 21 62 351 17 20.6


22 2 0 2 4 1 31


Gr. 2 22 21 21 22 87 23 21 21 65 21 21 42 21 21 42 21 22 19 19 81 21 21 19 61 378 18 21.0


17 3 0 1 1 0 22


Gr. 3 23 23 24 71 22 23 22 67 23 22 45 21 23 23 67 22 24 21 67 23 22 23 68 385 17 22.6


24 2 1 2 2 1 32


Gr. 4 23 21 22 66 23 24 47 23 23 23 69 24 24 23 71 22 23 23 68 23 23 24 70 391 17 23.0


3 0 1 5 4 1 14


Gr. 5 22 21 23 66 24 22 46 23 24 24 71 24 24 24 72 22 24 23 22 91 24 24 24 72 418 18 23.2


15 1 5 1 7 2 31


Gr. 6 18 18 17 53 24 24 25 73 24 23 24 71 23 22 45 22 21 23 24 90 21 21 25 22 89 421 19 22.2


12 3 0 0 4 4 23


105 13 8 12 26 10 174


Total 23 20.8 479 19 21.8 415 18 21.9 395 17 22.2 378 24 21.3 512 22 21.7 477 2656 123 21.6


105 Acton residents attend school in Boxborough


69 Boxborough residents attend school in Acton







 ACTON-BOXBOROUGH REGIONAL SCHOOLS 2019-2020
 


Sept. 1 Oct. 1 Nov. 1 Dec. 1 Jan. 1 Feb. 1 Mar. 1 Apr. 1


Levels A B C Tot A B C Tot A B C Tot A B C Tot A B C Tot A B C Tot A B C Tot A B C Tot
*Preschool 


services 11 4 0 15 11 4 0 15 13 3 0 16 13 3 0 16 13 3 0 16 14 3 0 17 13 3 0 16 13 3 0 16


Pre-school 77 24 3 104 76 23 3 102 80 24 3 107 79 24 3 106 80 24 3 107 82 25 3 110 86 25 3 114 85 24 3 112


Preschool Total 77 24 3 104 76 23 3 102 80 24 3 107 79 24 3 106 80 24 3 107 82 25 3 110 86 25 3 114 85 24 3 112


K 254 48 4 306 253 49 4 306 254 49 4 307 254 52 4 310 255 51 4 310 256 52 4 312 256 52 4 312 256 52 4 312


1 274 67 6 347 274 66 6 346 276 66 6 348 275 66 6 347 276 66 6 348 274 66 6 346 278 67 6 351 278 67 6 351


2 302 77 2 381 302 77 2 381 303 76 2 381 301 76 2 379 302 76 2 380 303 76 2 381 302 74 2 378 302 74 2 378


3 320 53 5 378 320 53 4 377 322 53 4 379 322 53 4 379 323 53 4 380 326 53 4 383 327 53 4 384 327 54 4 385


4 312 73 6 391 312 74 6 392 312 74 6 392 311 74 6 391 309 74 6 389 310 74 6 390 312 74 6 392 311 74 6 391


5 343 63 6 412 342 64 6 412 343 65 6 414 342 65 6 413 344 65 6 415 346 66 6 418 346 66 6 418 346 66 6 418


6 366 52 6 424 365 50 6 421 363 50 6 419 361 50 6 417 363 50 6 419 364 50 6 420 364 51 6 421 364 51 6 421


Elem Sub Total 2171 433 35 2639 2168 433 34 2635 2173 433 34 2640 2166 436 34 2636 2172 435 34 2641 2179 437 34 2650 2185 437 34 2656 2184 438 34 2656


OOD Pre k-6 10 2 0 12 10 2 0 12 11 2 0 13 11 2 0 13 14 2 0 16 14 2 1 17 15 2 0 17 17 2 0 19


Elem. Total 2181 435 35 2651 2178 435 34 2647 2184 435 34 2653 2177 438 34 2649 2186 437 34 2657 2193 439 35 2667 2200 439 34 2673 2201 440 34 2675


7 351 53 8 412 351 53 8 412 351 54 8 413 353 54 8 415 352 55 8 415 351 55 8 414 353 55 8 416 352 55 8 415


8 365 69 13 447 365 70 13 448 364 71 13 448 363 71 13 447 363 71 13 447 365 71 13 449 364 71 13 448 363 70 13 446


J.H.S. Total 716 122 21 859 716 123 21 860 715 125 21 861 716 125 21 862 715 126 21 862 716 126 21 863 717 126 21 864 715 125 21 861


9 391 73 7 471 392 71 7 470 391 72 7 470 392 72 7 471 392 72 7 471 394 71 7 472 394 71 7 472 394 71 7 472


10 389 68 3 460 390 69 4 463 390 68 4 462 391 68 4 463 391 68 4 463 392 68 4 464 391 68 5 464 390 68 5 463


11 355 71 3 429 354 70 3 427 354 70 3 427 353 70 3 426 353 70 3 426 354 69 3 426 354 69 3 426 354 69 3 426


12 370 72 8 450 370 71 8 449 370 71 9 450 370 71 9 450 370 71 9 450 369 71 9 449 370 71 8 449 371 70 8 449


13 4 1 1 6 4 1 0 5 4 1 0 5 4 1 0 5 4 1 0 5 4 1 0 5 4 1 0 5 4 1 0 5


P.G. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


H.S. Total 1509 285 22 1816 1510 282 22 1814 1509 282 23 1814 1510 282 23 1815 1510 282 23 1815 1513 280 23 1816 1513 280 23 1816 1513 279 23 1815
Secondary 


Total 2225 407 43 2675 2226 405 43 2674 2224 407 44 2675 2226 407 44 2677 2225 408 44 2677 2229 406 44 2679 2230 406 44 2680 2228 404 44 2676


OOD 7-13 66 15 0 81 64 14 0 78 63 14 0 77 63 14 0 77 63 14 0 77 63 14 0 77 60 12 0 72 58 13 0 71


Reg. Total 2291 422 43 2756 2290 419 43 2752 2287 421 44 2752 2289 421 44 2754 2288 422 44 2754 2292 420 44 2756 2290 418 44 2752 2286 417 44 2747


Preschool Total 77 24 3 104 76 23 3 102 80 24 3 107 79 24 3 106 80 24 3 107 82 25 3 110 86 25 3 114 85 24 3 112


Elem Total 2181 435 35 2651 2178 435 34 2647 2184 435 34 2653 2177 438 34 2649 2186 437 34 2657 2193 439 35 2667 2200 439 34 2673 2201 440 34 2675
Secondary 


Total 2291 422 43 2756 2290 419 43 2752 2287 421 44 2752 2289 421 44 2754 2288 422 44 2754 2292 420 44 2756 2290 418 44 2752 2286 417 44 2747


Grand Total 4549 881 81 5511 4544 877 80 5501 4551 880 81 5512 4545 883 81 5509 4554 883 81 5518 4567 884 82 5533 4576 882 81 5539 4572 881 81 5534


A = ACTON Pre-School In D. = In DistricDistribution: P. Light D. Verdolino All Principals (2)


B = BOXBOROUGH P.G. = Post Graduates M. Altieri A. Bisewicz


C = Choice/Staff/TuitioUngr. = Ungraded D. Bookis K. Nelson  


D. Bentley J. Nichols/J. LaShombe


S. Cunningham
Students other than Choice counted under column C:
Staff Students - 
Tuition In Students - Rev.4/1/2020







4/16/2020 This Month in the Division of Open Government


https://mailchi.mp/8c9acff722b0/this-month-in-the-division-of-open-government-1523322?e=301f2ba8d8 1/3


View this email in your browser


 
This Month in the
Division of Open
Government
March 2020


Good afternoon,
 
We are writing today to share updates from the Attorney General’s Division of
Open Government.


Included in this month's edition:


Training Opportunities
Guidance Spotlight: Temporary Modifications to the Open Meeting Law's
Requirements


Please pass along the information below to your constituencies and to anyone
else who might be interested.


As always, you are welcome to contact us at (617) 963-2540 or
OpenMeeting@State.MA.US with any Open Meeting Law questions.


The Division of Open Government is currently working remotely, and
there will be a delay in our response to any physical mail sent to our
office. If possible, please email correspondence to
OpenMeeting@state.ma.us. 
 
In partnership,


Subscribe Past Issues Translate



https://mailchi.mp/8c9acff722b0/this-month-in-the-division-of-open-government-1523322?e=301f2ba8d8

https://www.mass.gov/orgs/office-of-attorney-general-maura-healey

mailto:OpenMeeting@State.MA.US

http://eepurl.com/c2pa8X

https://us15.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=cb4a8f8dde889f526f9b8ca4e&id=c1b7f9a0c2

https://us15.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=cb4a8f8dde889f526f9b8ca4e&id=c1b7f9a0c2

javascript:;





4/16/2020 This Month in the Division of Open Government


https://mailchi.mp/8c9acff722b0/this-month-in-the-division-of-open-government-1523322?e=301f2ba8d8 2/3


 
The Attorney General’s Division of Open Government


Training Opportunities


Due to public health recommendations regarding social distancing, our spring
regional trainings previously scheduled to be held in Stow, Westwood, Great


Barrington, and Barnstable have been postponed. We will be working to
schedule future trainings in these locations. In the meantime, we invite you to


participate in an upcoming Webinar training.


Upcoming Open Meeting Law Webinar Trainings


Thursday, April 9: 12:30pm - 2:00pm


Training Registration:  Individuals interested in attending an educational forum are asked to register in
advance by emailing OMLTraining@state.ma.us or by calling (617) 963-2925, and providing: 1) their first
and last names; 2) phone number; 3) email address; 4) town of residence; 5) the public body/organization


they represent, if applicable; and 6) the date and/or location of the educational forum they will attend.


Unable to participate in a live training?


Training videos, which feature the same content as live trainings, are available on our website.
Visit: https://www.mass.gov/service-details/open-meeting-law-training-videos.


Guidance Spotlight:
Temporary Modifications to the Open Meeting


Law's Requirements


On March 12, 2020, the Governor issued an Executive Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open
Meeting Law.  The Executive Order makes two primary changes to the Open Meeting Law.  First,
the Order relieves public bodies from the requirement in the Open Meeting Law that meetings be
conducted in a public place that is open and physically accessible to the public, provided that the public
body makes provision to ensure public access to the deliberations of the public body through adequate,
alternative means. Second, all members of a public body may participate in a meeting remotely; the
requirement that a quorum of a public body be physically present at the meeting location is suspended.
 
The Division of Open Government reminds public bodies that all other provisions of the the Open Meeting
Law and regulations remain in effect.  For example, notice of all meetings of public bodies must be posted
at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting, not including Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays.  In lieu
of a meeting "location," the meeting notice must included specific information on how the public may
access a meeting that is being held remotely.  In addition, the standards for holding an emergency
meeting, for which notice of a meeting may be posted less than 48 hours in advance, have not
changed.  An "emergency" is defined in the Open Meeting Law as “a sudden, generally unexpected
occurrence or set of circumstances demanding immediate action.” The existence of a declared state of
emergency at either the state or local level does not automatically entitle public bodies to hold
"emergency" meetings.  A public body seeking to hold an emergency meeting must be able to


Subscribe Past Issues Translate



mailto:OMLTraining@state.ma.us

https://www.mass.gov/service-details/open-meeting-law-training-videos

http://eepurl.com/c2pa8X

https://us15.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=cb4a8f8dde889f526f9b8ca4e&id=c1b7f9a0c2

https://us15.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=cb4a8f8dde889f526f9b8ca4e&id=c1b7f9a0c2

javascript:;





4/16/2020 This Month in the Division of Open Government


https://mailchi.mp/8c9acff722b0/this-month-in-the-division-of-open-government-1523322?e=301f2ba8d8 3/3


demonstrate not only the existence of a sudden, generally unexpected occurrence or set of
circumstances, but also that the specific matters to be discussed could not wait long enough to post notice
48 hours in advance.  
 
With regard to remote participation by public body members, the Executive Order expressly authorizes all
members of a public body to participate in a meeting remotely; therefore, during the time that the
Executive Order remains in effect, public bodies need not vote to "adopt" the practice of remote
participation before they may begin holding meetings with all public body members participating
remotely.  However, we remind public bodies that all other procedural requirements for remote
participation remain in effect, as set forth in the Attorney General's regulations.  See 940 CMR 29.10.  For
example, all members of a public body participating remotely must be clearly audible to each other; text or
online chat is not an acceptable method of remote participation.  If a public body member is disconnected
from the meeting, that fact and the time the disconnection occurred shall be noted in the meeting
minutes.  At the beginning of the meeting, the public body chair must identify all public body members
participating remotely, and all votes taken during the meeting must be conducted by roll call vote.  In
addition, at the start of any executive session, each public body member must state that no other person
is present and/or able to hear the discussion at the remote location, unless the public body has voted to
approve that person's presence.
 
Now, more than ever, it is critical that public bodies carry out their business as transparently as possible,
and in accordance with the Open Meeting Law.  As always, the Division of Open Government's legal staff
is available to provide guidance on the requirements of the Open Meeting Law.  Please contact us at (617)
963-2540 or OpenMeeting@state.ma.us.


Copyright © 2020 Massachusetts Attorney General's Office, All rights reserved.


Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.


Subscribe Past Issues Translate



https://www.facebook.com/MassAttorneyGeneral/

https://twitter.com/MassAGO

https://www.instagram.com/mass_ago/

http://www.mass.gov/ago

https://mass.us15.list-manage.com/profile?u=cb4a8f8dde889f526f9b8ca4e&id=c1b7f9a0c2&e=301f2ba8d8

https://mass.us15.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=cb4a8f8dde889f526f9b8ca4e&id=c1b7f9a0c2&e=301f2ba8d8&c=a66ed8ec4b

http://www.mailchimp.com/monkey-rewards/?utm_source=freemium_newsletter&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=monkey_rewards&aid=cb4a8f8dde889f526f9b8ca4e&afl=1

http://eepurl.com/c2pa8X

https://us15.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=cb4a8f8dde889f526f9b8ca4e&id=c1b7f9a0c2

https://us15.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=cb4a8f8dde889f526f9b8ca4e&id=c1b7f9a0c2

javascript:;





 


  
CASE Collaborative  


Family Community News & Resource Pages  
 


 


 CASE Collaborative Informational Groups 


 


Dear CASE  Parents & Guardians, 


 


Due to the COVID-19 outbreak and subsequent quarantine, all future CASE workshops will be suspended 


until further notice. 


 


Many organizations that support families of loved ones with special needs are rapidly adjusting to the 


new normal of social distancing and are now offering many on-line webinars and activities. The resources 


I have included in the subsequent pages are not intended to replace curriculum designed by your child’s 


classroom teacher instead are provided as enrichment opportunities and support for you and your family. 


 


As we enter this next week of staying home and saving lives, I hope you will all find new ways to connect 


and find the strength to support yourselves, your friends and families. We’re all in this together. Be well. 


 


 


In community spirit, 


 


Sue Campbell  


Resource Assistant 


 


Sanchita Banerjee 


Executive Director 


 


 
 







 


 Community Workshops and Conferences 


 


 
 


ADDitude's 8-Week Parenting Class is a newsletter series focused on these critical topics for caregivers & children 
with ADHD 
*Organization & Chores 
*Positive Parenting 
*Sleep & Routines 
*Discipline for Better Behavior 
*Nutrition for Growing ADHD Brains 
*Improving Executive Functions 
*The Great Screen Debate 
*Controlling Emotions & Making Friends 
To learn more visit https://us8.campaign-
archive.com/?u=05c078d02e79a07f64018da62&id=ec65698543&e=748ea9fd70 
 
 


 
 


AANE's Spring 2020 Conference - Managing Anxiety *Format Change: Recorded Conference Only* 
When: Register by April 10 - Recording will be made available April 10 
Format: On-line 
Anxiety can be an overwhelming, debilitating experience, and one that can impact mood, day-to-day functioning, and 
relationships. Methods for finding relief from anxiety can look different for each person and may include a combination 
of approaches. Join us to learn from experts and personal stories about the wide variety of options available to 
individuals on the spectrum struggling with anxiety. To support community health efforts, AANE has changed the Spring 
Conference format from an in-person conference with a streaming option to be entirely online only. Conference 
content will be pre-recorded and available for registrants to view at their convenience beginning April 10. For more 
information and registration visit  https://www.eventbrite.com/e/aanes-spring-2020-conference-tickets-90221379575 


 


 
Nikon is offering free online photography classes  
Nikon has made its entire curriculum of online photography classes free now through April 30th, all 10 classes available 
at the Nikon School can be streamed for free. Each class is taught by a professional photographer and provides in-depth 
lessons to help you get better at taking photos. Some courses cover Nikon-specific products, but many of them teach 
you the fundamentals of photography, such as a course that teaches you how to photograph your children or pets or 
the basics of making a music video. So even if you don’t own a Nikon camera, many of these classes might still be worth 
a watch. To learn more about class offerings visit https://www.theverge.com/2020/4/2/21204243/nikon-free-
photography-classes-april *Note:  These classes are not disability specific and open to all. 
 



https://us8.campaign-archive.com/?u=05c078d02e79a07f64018da62&id=ec65698543&e=748ea9fd70

https://us8.campaign-archive.com/?u=05c078d02e79a07f64018da62&id=ec65698543&e=748ea9fd70

https://www.eventbrite.com/e/aanes-spring-2020-conference-tickets-90221379575

https://www.theverge.com/2020/4/2/21204243/nikon-free-photography-classes-april

https://www.theverge.com/2020/4/2/21204243/nikon-free-photography-classes-april





 
 


 
 


Join Eileen Sandberg from the Federation for Children with Special Needs for a Webinar: "Coping with Children's 
Anxiety (and Ours!) 
When: April 10, 2020 | Fri 10:00 am   
We are THRILLED to announce a collaboration with the Federation for Children with Special Needs to provide 
information and resources for grandparents and relative caregivers about how to address children's anxiety during 
COVID-19. This webinar is FREE and is intended to provide information and resources to help you and your children 
cope during this difficult and unusual time. Please register to email: colleen.pritoni@state.ma.us 
 


 


 


 
 
ABLE Savings Accounts for Special-Needs Families 
When: April 14, 2020 | Tues 7:00 pm  - 9:00 pm 
Format: Webinar 
Mary Rubenis, the Attainable Outreach Manager for the Massachusetts ABLE Savings Plan.  This Special Needs Housing 
and Transition Meeting event co-sponsored by the Autism Insurance Resource Center at UMass Worcester. 
About the Speaker: Mary Rubenis is the Attainable Outreach Manager for the Massachusetts ABLE Savings Plan, offered 
by the Massachusetts Educational Financing Authority (MEFA) and managed by Fidelity Investments. Mary, who is a 
member of the College Planning team at MEFA, assists families and school professionals with college planning, financial 
aid and tax-advantaged savings plans. 
* Webinar Meeting – Call or Log-in to Join 
* To join in the meeting please select the link below. You can call or log-in to the meeting. 
Join from PC, Mac, Linux, iOS or Android:  https://umassmed.zoom.us/j/134606035 
You may be asked to download the application. 
To view the presentation download the app. 
Within the Zoom you have the option to participate using the microphone and audio on your computer or with your 
phone. Or iPhone one-tap (US Toll): +16468769923,134606035# or +13126266799,134606035# 
Using the Zoom app on iPhone or Android 
Meeting Id: 134606035 
To participate by phone only – Dial: 
+1 646 876 9923 (US Toll) 
+1 312 626 6799 (US Toll) 
+1 301 715 8592 (US Toll) 
+1 346 248 7799 (US Toll) 
+1 669 900 6833 (US Toll) 
+1 253 215 8782 (US Toll) 
Meeting ID: 134 606 035 
International numbers available: https://umassmed.zoom.us/u/aehuxtgVNM 
If you have any questions please contact Amy Weinstock at Amy.Weinstock@umassmed.edu 
*information found at www.spedchildmass.com 
 
 
 
 



mailto:colleen.pritoni@state.ma.us

http://www.spedchildmass.com/





 
 


 
 
RTSC Webinar: Supporting Children with Autism during School Closure 
When: April 21, 2020 | Tues 12:30 pm 
Format Free Webinar 
Autism is a pervasive developmental condition that affects all domains of functioning. This webinar will provide 
considerations and specific strategies for supporting children on the spectrum at home during school closure related to 
COVID-19. It will be informative for parents and other caregivers, as well as professionals who are supporting families 
through this new reality. Dr. Yulika Forman is a developmental psychologist who has a private practice as a special 
education consultant and advocate in the Greater Boston area."  To register visit 
https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_UpVaTHpoQ9CrvRgYh9C3QQ 
 
 


 


 
 
 
Executive Function: The Bridge Between Home and School 
When: April 15, 2020 | Wed 4:00 pm 
Format: Webinar 
Executive function is critically important for day to day living. Whether at home or at school, students need executive 
function strategies to handle challenging tasks as they set goals, shift flexibly, organize materials and information and 
self-monitor and check their behavior and their work.  Both teachers and parents do a lot to support the executive 
function needs of students; however, when EF expectations and supports are different at home and at school, EF 
difficulties may arise. To truly support the EF needs of students, EF expectations and strategies must be clearly defined 
and accessible to everyone involved (teachers, parents, and students too). In this one hour webinar, educational 
therapists from the Institute for Learning and Development will share strategies they have used to help parents 
understand and support their students’ executive function needs at home and at school. For registration visit 
https://zoom.us/meeting/register/up0qfuGorTIoTBYPtPoqDvWdlaeIJlMsSQ 


 


 


 


 
 


Asperger’s/Autism 101: A Workshop for Parents of Children/Teens 
When: April 23, 2020 | Thurs 7:00 pm - 9:00 pm 
Format: On-line 
Start your journey with your wonderful, engaging, sometimes quirky child! This two hour workshop will go over what 
you can expect raising a child or teen on the autism spectrum. We will cover core strengths and challenges, some ways 
to cope at home, advocating at school, transition planning, and more. Space is limited. Please register by Wednesday, 
April 22, 2020. Register here: 


https://events.r20.constantcontact.com/register/eventReg?oeidk=a07egzc4hq6d6544321&oseq=&c=&ch= 


 


 


 


 


 



https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_UpVaTHpoQ9CrvRgYh9C3QQ

https://zoom.us/meeting/register/up0qfuGorTIoTBYPtPoqDvWdlaeIJlMsSQ

https://events.r20.constantcontact.com/register/eventReg?oeidk=a07egzc4hq6d6544321&oseq=&c=&ch





 


 
 
A Parent’s Journey to Presuming Competence & Utilizing Multi-Modal Communication with Their Non-Speaking 
Child: Recorded Presentation 
When: April 30, 2020 | Thurs 1:00 pm 
Format: Webinar 
Deafblindness Family Learning Series in Boston Massachusetts April 30th, 2020, 10:00 a.m. PST / 1:00 p.m. EST, with 
TACA (The Autism Community in Action). TACA live webinars are free and provide education and information for 
parents.  Many of the webinars will include a survey at the end so that attendees can receive the slides via email. 
* With Michelle and William Del Rosario. William is a 19-year-old student with autism who uses a variety of 
Augmentative and Alternative Communication (AAC) modalities, demonstrating that non-speaking doesn’t mean non-
thinking. He is currently working towards his longer-term goal of one day attending college while balancing a purposeful 
life with fun. Michelle Del Rosario has a passion for seeking parent education and learning more about how to help her 
son use multi-modal communication methods while presuming competence. 
To register or for more information visit https://tacanow.org/family-
resources/webinars/?eType=EmailBlastContent&eId=d59bae28-84fc-4a63-ba32-c2cd1decba38  or contact TACA at 
(855) 726-7810. 
 
 


 
 
 



https://tacanow.org/family-resources/webinars/?eType=EmailBlastContent&eId=d59bae28-84fc-4a63-ba32-c2cd1decba38

https://tacanow.org/family-resources/webinars/?eType=EmailBlastContent&eId=d59bae28-84fc-4a63-ba32-c2cd1decba38





 


 Transition (ages 14-22) and Beyond 


 
 


 
 


How I Use Lights to Manage My Mental Health and Brighten My Mood 
Check out the Latest Young Adult Blog Post on our Transitions ACR Website here 
https://www.umassmed.edu/TransitionsACR/youth-voice/ya-blog-corner2/Managing-Mental-Health-with-Light-
Therapy/ 
 
 


 
 


Learn more about our Youth Advisory Board (YAB) is part of our Stakeholder Engagement Program 
Our Youth Advisory Board (YAB) is part of our Stakeholder Engagement Program. We value the voices of people with 
lived mental health experience to inform our research and provide us feedback on what we do. Our YAB is a virtual 
board of about 10 young adults between the ages of 14-30 years old with serious mental health conditions from all 
across the United States. One fun thing they are doing is creating memes to share their perspective on living with a 
mental health condition. 
If you'd like to see the memes they created, find them on our: 
Instagram: https://www.instagram.com/transitions_acr/ 
Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/TransitionsACR 
Twitter: https://twitter.com/TransitionsACR 
Read more about our Stakeholder Engagement Program here. 
https://www.umassmed.edu/sparc/isparccenters/engaging-the-mental-health-community-in-research/stakeholder-
advisory-boards/young-adult-advisory-board/  Also see flyer below. 
 
 


 
 
First Time Filing Taxes 
Is it your first time filing taxes? Maybe your kid has to file after having a part time gig. Teach them how to file taxes 
properly by using IRS Free File. IRS Free File is a fast and easy way for young people looking to save money on tax 
preparation. WASHINGTON — Filing taxes for the first time or working part-time? IRS Free File may be the perfect 
match for people looking to save money on federal tax preparation. Most Free File users are under the age of 30 with 
modest incomes. The Free File adjusted gross income limit for 2020 is $69,000. For those who want to do their own 
taxes, Free File means free tax preparation, free electronic filing and free direct deposit, which is the fastest way to get 
a refund. Learn more here https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/irs-free-file-ideal-for-young-and-first-time-filers 
 
 
 
 
 



https://www.umassmed.edu/TransitionsACR/youth-voice/ya-blog-corner2/Managing-Mental-Health-with-Light-Therapy/

https://www.umassmed.edu/TransitionsACR/youth-voice/ya-blog-corner2/Managing-Mental-Health-with-Light-Therapy/

https://www.instagram.com/transitions_acr/

https://www.facebook.com/TransitionsACR

https://twitter.com/TransitionsACR

https://www.umassmed.edu/sparc/isparccenters/engaging-the-mental-health-community-in-research/stakeholder-advisory-boards/young-adult-advisory-board/

https://www.umassmed.edu/sparc/isparccenters/engaging-the-mental-health-community-in-research/stakeholder-advisory-boards/young-adult-advisory-board/

https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/irs-free-file-ideal-for-young-and-first-time-filers





 
 


 
 
My Charting the LifeCourse: Putting the Frameworks & Tools into Action! 
When: April 14, 2020 | Tues 12:00 pm  
What is all the buzz about Charting the LifeCourse? This webinar will provide an overview of the frameworks and tools 
and how family members, professionals and individuals can utilize Charting the LifeCourse to help plan, set goals and 
problem solve in all life stages! Presented by: Kerry Mahoney, Director of Education and Outreach at The Arc of 
Massachusetts. Kerry was one of 15 professionals, educators and family members from Massachusetts that recently 
completed the Charting the LifeCourse Ambassador Series. For registration visit 
https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/v5MpcOuppj8i8XBN-Lj3LgH-zSd-j5EJJw 
 
 
 


 
 



https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/v5MpcOuppj8i8XBN-Lj3LgH-zSd-j5EJJw





 


 
Emotion Intelligence 101 for teens 
When:  Fri 10:30 am – 12:00 pm 
Format: On-Line, Cost: $35 per class 
A live, online class for teens all about emotional intelligence and ways to regulate emotions. emotional Intelligence, or 
EI, is an important aspect of life that is not taught in schools. Developing EI can lead to higher resilience, better stress 
management, more empathy, and improved communication skills. Essentially, it is the key to better overall mental 
health. This time out of traditional school settings has created an opportunity to teach teens EI. Led by Coach/Therapist 
Molly McGrew, this Emotional Intelligence 101 virtual group will teach teens skills to recognize their own emotions, 
how to cope with emotions, and how to identify and cope with the emotions of people around them. To sign up visit 
https://hallowelltodaro.com/emotion-intelligence-101-for-teens 
 


 
Lunch-n-Learn Webinar Series 
When: April 10, 2020 | Fri  12:00 pm 
Format: Webinar Series 
We are proud to present SGN from SNFP - Some Good News from Special Needs Financial Planning!  
We are hosting a weekly 15 minute Lunch-n-Learn webinar series focused on actions families can take while they are at 


home together to help them plan for the future.  On National Siblings Day. 👫 Honor your family member by attending 
our webinar, It's Time to Complete your Letter of Intent.  There is no time like the present to complete your LOI but this 
is a big document; where to start and what to focus upon?  We will share tips on what your family should be thinking 
about when completing key areas of the LOI, as well as who should be involved, where it should be saved and how 
often to update it. Click the button below or email Alex Nadworny at anadworny@affiniafg.com to RSVP and submit 
questions in advance.  


 
 
Format Change: Online ONLY* Preparing for College Workshop & College Consultations 
When: April 18, 2020 | Sat 2:30 pm - 4:30 pm 
Where: Online Only 
AANE is pleased to have Jane Thierfeld Brown, EdD, co-author of “A Parent’s Guide to College for Students on the 
Autism Spectrum” conduct a free online workshop, which will cover the key steps needed for success after high school 
for students with Asperger/autism profiles. Jane will also be available for individual, college consultations via Skype. 
*Now FREE!* For more information and registration visit https://www.aane.org/event/preparing-for-college/ 
 


 
Overview of Affordable Housing 
When: May 7th, 2020 | Thurs 6:00 pm – 7:00 pm 
Format: Webinar - Join online or by phone.  
Learn How To: 
*Apply for Section 8, public housing, and other options 
*Find local application support 
*Preserve your present housing 
*Obtain reasonable accommodations and report discrimination 
Presented By: Adrianne Cassidy, Director of Housing at Advocates, Inc. & Jill Gichuhi, COMPASS Helpline Director at 
NAMI Massachusetts. Space is limited and registration is required. Register at: www.namimass.org/housing-webinar/ 
 



https://hallowelltodaro.com/emotion-intelligence-101-for-teens

mailto:anadworny@affiniafg.com

https://www.aane.org/event/preparing-for-college/

http://www.namimass.org/housing-webinar/





 


 Community Support & Resources Related to COVID-19 


 
 


 
 


Mondays: Leo Live on COVID-19 Updates 
 Executive Director Leo Sarkissian will provide weekly summaries on what has been accomplished and/or resolved on 
the Federal and state level and what we need to do next! 
*Apr 13, 2020 12:00 PM 
*Apr 20, 2020 12:00 PM 
*Apr 27, 2020 12:00 PM 
*May 4, 2020 12:00 PM 
*May 11, 2020 12:00 PM 
Time shows in Eastern Time (US and Canada). Registration is required 
https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/u50udeuqrDgvNBQdVXdgK1v7aW0O5Dyutg?_ga=2.106881027.1444954458
.1585534261-1951551080.1584551543 
 
Tuesdays: Check in Call with Kerry 
Do you have a question on access to resources, information or support during the COVID-19 Crisis? 
Kerry Director of Education and Outreach at The Arc of Massachusetts will help problem solve and provide information 
and resources. 
*Apr 14, 2020 11:00 AM 
*Apr 21, 2020 11:00 AM 
*Apr 28, 2020 11:00 AM 
*May 5, 2020 11:00 AM 
*May 12, 2020 11:00 AM 
Time shows in Eastern Time (US and Canada). Registration required. https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/uJckd-
qurTsvUXAU0_STCu_qeT94aQ6MBA?_ga=2.41404322.1444954458.1585534261-1951551080.1584551543 
 
Thursdays: Massachusetts COVID-19 Updates with Maura 
Join Director of Government Affairs Maura Sullivan for updates on the latest policies and departmental news relating to 
the COVID-19 crisis in Massachusetts. 
*Apr 9, 2020 11:00 AM 
*Apr 16, 2020 11:00 AM 
*Apr 23, 2020 11:00 AM 
*Apr 30, 2020 11:00 AM 
*May 7, 2020 11:00 AM 
*May 14, 2020 11:00 AM 
Time shows in Eastern Time (US and Canada). Registration required. 
https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/u5cqcu2hrTgt5Zy3iTuPtFvvcVPlq-HOUg 
 
(continued next page) 
 
 
 



https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/u50udeuqrDgvNBQdVXdgK1v7aW0O5Dyutg?_ga=2.106881027.1444954458.1585534261-1951551080.1584551543

https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/u50udeuqrDgvNBQdVXdgK1v7aW0O5Dyutg?_ga=2.106881027.1444954458.1585534261-1951551080.1584551543

https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/uJckd-qurTsvUXAU0_STCu_qeT94aQ6MBA?_ga=2.41404322.1444954458.1585534261-1951551080.1584551543

https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/uJckd-qurTsvUXAU0_STCu_qeT94aQ6MBA?_ga=2.41404322.1444954458.1585534261-1951551080.1584551543

https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/u5cqcu2hrTgt5Zy3iTuPtFvvcVPlq-HOUg





 
 


 
 
Fridays: Federal Friday COVID-19 Updates with Ellen 
Join Policy Officer Ellen Taverna to hear about the work that is being done nationally to support people with I/DD and 
autism and their families during the COVID-19 crisis. 
*Apr 10, 2020 12:00 PM 
*Apr 17, 2020 12:00 PM 
*Apr 24, 2020 12:00 PM 
*May 1, 2020 12:00 PM 
*May 8, 2020 12:00 PM 
*May 15, 2020 12:00 PM 
Time shows in Eastern Time (US and Canada). Registration required. 
https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/vJYkcuCtrTwuVwG2mjBmugxJLz_s4VQl1g?_ga=2.5107507.1444954458.158
5534261-1951551080.1584551543 
*Have you missed any of this week's COVID-19 webinars so far? Don't worry. Head on over to our YouTube channel and 
watch Leo's Monday webinar, Kerry's Tuesday webinar, and Maura's Thursday webinar now. Be sure to subscribe to 
The Arc's YouTube channel to be the first to know when the new webinars are posted. 


 


 
 
Corona Virus Information and Resources   
Family Voices is a national organization and grassroots network of families and friends of children and youth with 
special health care needs and disabilities that promotes partnership with families–including those of cultural, linguistic 
and geographic diversity—in order to improve healthcare services and policies for children.  Family Voices is deeply 
committed to family engagement in health and wellness of children and youth with special health care needs and their 
families.  Our staff are working with national partners to provide current information about the spread of the 
coronavirus, also known as COVID-19.  As the situation around the virus is changing rapidly, it can be difficult to make 
sense of all the information being reported on the national and local level. Below are some key questions along with 
some ideas and resources.  Click the “+” toggle on the right side of the blue bars to view detail under each listed topic.   
Check out the coronavirus-focused March edition of the Family Voices Resource eBlast Newsletter here 
https://myemail.constantcontact.com/Resource-eBlast---March-2020---Resources-for-Families  
 


 
 
COVID-19: Information for Families of Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs 
“As COVID-19 continues to spread, children and youth with special health care needs (CYSHCN), may be at increased 
risk for complications. This includes children with chronic conditions, disabilities, and those with medically complex 
conditions. In addition, school and business closings may affect the availability of therapies and supports for these 
children. The impact is unknown but may be significant and long lasting. Here are things that parents can do to keep 
themselves, their families, and their children with special health care needs safe during the COVID-19 outbreak…” Read 
full article here https://www.healthychildren.org/English/health-issues/conditions/chest-lungs/Pages/COVID-19-
Information-for-Families-of-Children-and-Youth-with-Special-Health-Care-Needs  
 


 



https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/vJYkcuCtrTwuVwG2mjBmugxJLz_s4VQl1g?_ga=2.5107507.1444954458.1585534261-1951551080.1584551543

https://arcmass.zoom.us/meeting/register/vJYkcuCtrTwuVwG2mjBmugxJLz_s4VQl1g?_ga=2.5107507.1444954458.1585534261-1951551080.1584551543

https://myemail.constantcontact.com/Resource-eBlast---March-2020---Resources-for-Families.html?soid=1102887255338&aid=YgJvDCxkWo8

https://www.healthychildren.org/English/health-issues/conditions/chest-lungs/Pages/COVID-19-Information-for-Families-of-Children-and-Youth-with-Special-Health-Care-Needs.aspx?fbclid=IwAR3A7_gtE2FYRV59Z2oU4FU3OaK57T6Te0ez87tRBOAsH6r0IRCyHG55Uwg

https://www.healthychildren.org/English/health-issues/conditions/chest-lungs/Pages/COVID-19-Information-for-Families-of-Children-and-Youth-with-Special-Health-Care-Needs.aspx?fbclid=IwAR3A7_gtE2FYRV59Z2oU4FU3OaK57T6Te0ez87tRBOAsH6r0IRCyHG55Uwg





 


 
 


Helping Children Cope With Changes Resulting From COVID-19 
“Families across the country are adapting to the evolving changes in daily life caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Most 
schools, places of public gathering, and nonessential businesses are closed, and parents and other caregivers are faced 
with helping their families adjust to the new normal. This includes trying to keep children occupied, feeling safe, and 
attempting to keep up with schoolwork as best as possible. None of this easy, but it helps to stay focused on what is 
possible in order to reinforce a sense of control and to reassure children that they are okay, and that the situation will 
get better….” Read more here https://www.nasponline.org/resources-and-publications/resources-and-
podcasts/school-climate-safety-and-crisis/health-crisis-resources/helping-children-cope-with-changes-resulting-from-
covid-19 
 


 
 


Supporting Kids During the Coronavirus Crisis 
We know parents are struggling to balance work, child care and self-care while keeping worries — both your children’s 
and your own — under control. You don’t have to do it alone.   
Topics discussed include: 
*Coping With the Coronavirus Crisis 
*Autism and the Coronavirus 
*Managing Anxiety 
*Discipline and Behavior 
*Dealing With Loss 
Click on the following link to learn more. https://childmind.org/coping-during-covid-19-resources-for-parents/ 
 


 
 
The First 8 Steps for Tackling This Quarantine for Families Affected by Autism 
“This is an extremely stressful time, particularly for families affected by autism at home. At the Flutie Foundation, WE 
SEE YOU and understand the struggle. This is probably super frustrating because you are trying to maintain your own 
job/responsibilities, AND feel the pressure to educate/support your child on the spectrum---so give yourself some 
grace, allow for mistakes, and remember to make time for yourself when you can….” Read full article here 
https://www.flutiefoundation.org/blog/spectrum-ideas-autism-
home?fbclid=IwAR2JulQIwZzZb8H9as0om64KZQOlUdfstvwv_40n2xmEzqM-mqY11gOzJ6Q 
 


 
4 Reasons Why Special Needs Parents are Better Equipped than Everyone Else to Handle Coronavirus Stress 
by Rose Reif | Mar 19, 2020 | Counseling for special needs parents 
“In the last week, as concern about Covid-19 has increased, I have come to recognize some things that make my 
counseling clients who are raising kids with disabilities especially adept at handling this time of scarcity, uncertainty, 
and isolation…” Continue reading here https://reifpsychservices.com/4-reasons-why-special-needs-parents-are-better-
equipped-than-everyone-else-to-handle-coronavirus-stress 
 



https://www.nasponline.org/resources-and-publications/resources-and-podcasts/school-climate-safety-and-crisis/health-crisis-resources/helping-children-cope-with-changes-resulting-from-covid-19

https://www.nasponline.org/resources-and-publications/resources-and-podcasts/school-climate-safety-and-crisis/health-crisis-resources/helping-children-cope-with-changes-resulting-from-covid-19

https://www.nasponline.org/resources-and-publications/resources-and-podcasts/school-climate-safety-and-crisis/health-crisis-resources/helping-children-cope-with-changes-resulting-from-covid-19

https://childmind.org/coping-during-covid-19-resources-for-parents/

https://www.flutiefoundation.org/blog/spectrum-ideas-autism-home?fbclid=IwAR2JulQIwZzZb8H9as0om64KZQOlUdfstvwv_40n2xmEzqM-mqY11gOzJ6Q

https://www.flutiefoundation.org/blog/spectrum-ideas-autism-home?fbclid=IwAR2JulQIwZzZb8H9as0om64KZQOlUdfstvwv_40n2xmEzqM-mqY11gOzJ6Q

https://reifpsychservices.com/4-reasons-why-special-needs-parents-are-better-equipped-than-everyone-else-to-handle-coronavirus-stress/?fbclid=IwAR20e2vSy3pft9mT7s0buyWHUfGod-fFD4nx8W5RXDDHQlvgQErZHMDD-II&blm_aid=34829

https://reifpsychservices.com/4-reasons-why-special-needs-parents-are-better-equipped-than-everyone-else-to-handle-coronavirus-stress/?fbclid=IwAR20e2vSy3pft9mT7s0buyWHUfGod-fFD4nx8W5RXDDHQlvgQErZHMDD-II&blm_aid=34829





 
 


 
 
Boston Children  Hospital’s Response to COVID-19 
Click on the link below to learn about: 
*What is coronavirus, SARS CoV-2, and COVID-19? 
*COVID-19 prevention and testing 
*Teens, social distancing, and anxiety in the time of COVID-19 
*How can I protect my family? 
*Help your kids stay busy and happy at home during COVID-19 shutdowns? 
*… and more informative topics and resources 
https://www.childrenshospital.org/conditions-and-treatments/conditions/c/coronavirus 
 
 


 


 
 


Social Stories for Young and Old on COVID-19 
Click on the following link to download social stories on the topics listed below 
https://www.autismresourcecentral.org/social-stories-for-young-and-old-on-covid-19/ 
*Social Story about Coronavirus with PECS  
*Social Story About Social Distancing with Pecs Stay at Home 
*Social Story about Coronavirus , virtual book  
*Plain-Language-Information-on-Coronavirus 
*Información de COVID-19 Por y Para Personas con Discapacidades 
*Carol Grey Social Story – Watching a Pandemic on Television  
*Someday: A Story of Hope for Children by Carol Gray 
*COVID-19: I Can Help! by Carol Gray 
*SPANISH/COVID-19: I Can Help! by Carol Gray 
*Pandemics and the coronavirus by Carol Gray 
*SPANISH /Pandemics and the coronavirus by Carol Gray 
*Corona Autism and Dealing with Uncertainty  
*Germs-Social-Story 
*Edenderry Schools Social Stories  
*Teaching Differently Corona Virus Social Story  
*Time to Come In, Bear: A Children’s Story About Social Distancing (Utube Video)  
*wash-your-hands-steps-8×11 
*Video teaching the importance of hand washing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



https://www.childrenshospital.org/conditions-and-treatments/conditions/c/coronavirus/?utm_campaign=FY20brandcoronavirus&utm_medium=email&utm_source=newsletter&utm_content=apr

https://www.autismresourcecentral.org/social-stories-for-young-and-old-on-covid-19/





 


 On-line and In-Door Activities 


 
 


 


 
 


Easy and Exciting Egg Activities for Easter 
Parents, are you looking for some easy ways you might decorate Easter eggs with your kids? We gathered a few and 
also included some fun activities you can do with eggs. Visit https://www.parentingspecialneeds.org/article/easy-
exciting-egg-activities-easter/ 
 
7 Sensory Games Dads Can Play With Their Children 
Sensory Processing Disorder (SPD) my daughter, Jaimie, and my son, Xander both live with this disorder. They each have 
specific needs in terms of the sort of sensory input their bodies crave but both of them need a tremendous amount of 
vestibular and proprioceptive input. I’m not strong enough to play the rough-and-tumble games to give them the high 
vestibular and proprioception input they each need, so we invented a few games they can play with their siblings and 
their daddy, Steve. The key is to give your child the sensory input he needs in the most comfortable environment 
possible.  Read on here https://www.parentingspecialneeds.org/article/7-sensory-games-dads-play-children/ 
 


 


 
 


Country Singer Dolly Parton will start reading kids' bedtime stories starting TONIGHT (4/7), and continuing for the 
next few weeks, on her Imagination Library Facebook Page. Visit https://www.facebook.com/dollysimaginationlibrary/ 
To learn more. 


 
 


 
 


9 Indoor Activities for Hyperactive Kids 
Being stuck inside can give any kid cabin fever. But kids who struggle with hyperactivity or impulsivity may seem to be 
literally bouncing off the walls. Here are nine indoor activities that can keep even the most active child entertained. 
Learn more here https://www.understood.org/en/school-learning/learning-at-home/games-skillbuilders/cabin-fever-
indoor-activities-for-hyperactive-kids  
 
 
Board Games That Help Kids Build Key Skills 
Playing board games can be a fun way for kids to build important skills, from math skills to critical-thinking skills. 
Explore these educational board games for kids of various ages. Learn more here 
https://www.understood.org/en/school-learning/learning-at-home/games-skillbuilders/board-games-that-help-kids-
build-skills 
 
 



https://www.parentingspecialneeds.org/article/easy-exciting-egg-activities-easter/

https://www.parentingspecialneeds.org/article/easy-exciting-egg-activities-easter/

https://www.parentingspecialneeds.org/article/7-sensory-games-dads-play-children/

https://www.facebook.com/dollysimaginationlibrary/

https://www.understood.org/en/school-learning/learning-at-home/games-skillbuilders/cabin-fever-indoor-activities-for-hyperactive-kids

https://www.understood.org/en/school-learning/learning-at-home/games-skillbuilders/cabin-fever-indoor-activities-for-hyperactive-kids

https://www.understood.org/en/school-learning/learning-at-home/games-skillbuilders/board-games-that-help-kids-build-skills

https://www.understood.org/en/school-learning/learning-at-home/games-skillbuilders/board-games-that-help-kids-build-skills





 
 
 


 
 


8 Meditation Apps for Kids 
Many families say meditation and mindfulness help their child focus, cope with stress, and “quiet the mind.” These 
eight apps can help your child learn to meditate and be mindful. Many of them include guided meditations. You can 
also check out self-control apps for young kids and for teens and tweens. Learn more here 
https://www.understood.org/en/school-learning/assistive-technology/finding-an-assistive-technology/8-meditation-
apps-for-kids 
 
Stuck at Home? 20 Learning Activities to Keep Kids Busy from Around the Web 
*Download Reading Rockets’ five-day space adventure toolkit. https://www.startwithabook.org/space-rangers-book-
based-science-adventure 
*Build emotional smarts with GreatSchools’ feeling words game. https://www.greatschools.org/gk/do-you-feel-me  
*Download Common Sense Media’s apps to inspire outdoor play. https://www.commonsensemedia.org/lists/apps-
that-inspire-kids-to-play-outside 
*Watch famous actors read kids’ books out loud. https://www.storylineonline.net/ 
*Use baking to help young kids work on math skills. https://www.naeyc.org/resources/blog/baking-math 
*Play animated math games for grades 4–8. https://mathsnacks.com/ 
*Explore a world of wonders, like why don’t cats like water. https://www.wonderopolis.org/wonders 
*Play a sci-fi game to develop ethical decision-making skills. https://www.quandarygame.org/ 
*Find science projects based on your child’s age and interests. https://www.sciencebuddies.org/science-fair-
projects/science-projects 
*Use “how to” videos to make things like time capsules, shadow puppets, and chocolate pizza. 
https://family.gonoodle.com/channels/how-to 
 
Free Collection of the Best Online Learning Experiences and Activities for Kids 
We have exciting news!  In response to the coronavirus, Understood has partnered with the best in education, tech, 
and media to launch Wide Open School. It's a free collection of the best online learning experiences and activities for 
kids curated by Common Sense Media to help families and educators adapt to online learning. Click on the following 
links to learn more https://wideopenschool.org/,  https://www.commonsensemedia.org/ 
 
 
 


 
 
Magical Harry Potter Activities  
This site is sure to keep all the Harry Potter fans entertained for a while! Check out the fun activities offered here 
including quizzes, articles, puzzles, and craft videos that are all about magic.  
https://www.wizardingworld.com/collections/harry-potter-at-home?blm_aid=34829 
 
A Story of Hope 
While we are faced with more uncertainty every day, your child may be asking more questions about when things will 
get better and when they will be able to start doing what they love again. This social story is a great way to explain to 
your child that "Someday" everything will be better.  https://carolgraysocialstories.com/wp-
content/uploads/2020/03/Someday-A-Story-of-Hope-for-Children-2.pdf?blm_aid=34829 
 
 
 



https://www.understood.org/en/school-learning/assistive-technology/finding-an-assistive-technology/8-meditation-apps-for-kids

https://www.understood.org/en/school-learning/assistive-technology/finding-an-assistive-technology/8-meditation-apps-for-kids

https://www.startwithabook.org/space-rangers-book-based-science-adventure

https://www.startwithabook.org/space-rangers-book-based-science-adventure

https://www.greatschools.org/gk/do-you-feel-me

https://www.commonsensemedia.org/lists/apps-that-inspire-kids-to-play-outside

https://www.commonsensemedia.org/lists/apps-that-inspire-kids-to-play-outside

https://www.storylineonline.net/

https://www.naeyc.org/resources/blog/baking-math

https://mathsnacks.com/

https://www.wonderopolis.org/wonders

https://www.quandarygame.org/

https://www.sciencebuddies.org/science-fair-projects/science-projects

https://www.sciencebuddies.org/science-fair-projects/science-projects

https://family.gonoodle.com/channels/how-to

https://wideopenschool.org/

https://www.commonsensemedia.org/

https://www.wizardingworld.com/collections/harry-potter-at-home?blm_aid=34829

https://carolgraysocialstories.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Someday-A-Story-of-Hope-for-Children-2.pdf?blm_aid=34829

https://carolgraysocialstories.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Someday-A-Story-of-Hope-for-Children-2.pdf?blm_aid=34829





 
 


 
 


Athletes Unlimited Virtual Programs 
Athletes Unlimited had another great week running virtual programs with new athletes joining in. Brian Heffernan is 
pictured above playing Categories with Athletes Unlimited on Zoom. Many of our programs are seeing up to 40+ 
athletes in each class. We would like to get over 50 athletes in a class this week, so if you haven't joined any of the 
programs on Zoom, consider yourself officially challenged. Speaking of Zoom, they have upgraded the security on their 
site. When you click on any of our 15 programs this week, you will have to enter a password. Athletes Unlimited's 
password for all of our programs on Zoom is 2020. So just type in 2020 when going into any of our programs. 
Still going strong is our new Facebook group "Newton Athletes Unlimited Community & Connections". Please join it for 
the most up to date information on our programming! Watch out for riddles by Coach Heffernan. 
Last week's contest of "Throw backs aren't just for Thursdays" was won by Richard Schwalm. We will be sending him an 
AU T-Shirt from our online store. For this week's contest we would like to have someone take a photo of you 
participating in one of our online programs (an example would be the picture of Brian above). See below on how to 
enter. Join Newton Athletes Unlimited Community & Connections Facebook Group 
https://www.facebook.com/groups/1297312473791136/  See on-line events happening now! (listed below) 
 
*Monday Afternoon: Yoga with Sarah @ 2:00pm 
Afternoon yoga with Athletes Unlimited's favorite yogi, Sarah. Increase your flexibility and decrease your stress as yoga 
is great for both our physical and mental well-being. Join Yoga with Sarah 
https://zoom.us/j/491570243?pwd=aWFzQ0wxMk0zaUNLQWhBVi81Skx4UT09  Meeting ID: 491 570 243 
Password: 2020 (you will have to type this in) 
 
*Monday Night: Footloose Dance Party @ 7:00pm 
Amazing camp staff will be teaching The Juicy Wiggle, Cotton Eyed Joe and many other super fun dances. Put on some 
comfortable and fun dance clothes and be ready to rock out. 
Join Footloose Dance Party https://zoom.us/j/170713916?pwd=bEcwUWNpcFFwdUczL1lLa0szOUZzUT09 
Meeting ID: 170 713 916, Password: 2020 (you will need to type this in) 
 
*Tuesday Afternoon: Art with Karen @ 2:00pm 
This week everyone should have paper and a pencil or thin marker. Karen will be showing everyone how to make 
zentangles. Don't want to make a zentangle, no worries. Draw or color whatever your heart desires to share with the 
group. Join Art with Karen https://zoom.us/j/223894280?pwd=aW9rY1hDNDNIUkI4b0p1bE13UlJVdz09 
Meeting ID: 223 894 280 Password: 2020 (you will need to type this in) 
 
*Tuesday Night: Trivia with Lucy & Johanna @ 7:00pm 
Tuesday night trivia has never been so fun with hosts Johanna and Lucy. This game night will connect you with your 
friends and you will laugh so much you won't even realize you are exercising your brain. Join Trivia Night 
https://zoom.us/j/197652372?pwd=cFhhVkxsaUZyeklzLzBObElhNHVYdz09 Meeting ID: 197 652 372 
Password: 2020 (you will need to type this in) 
 
*Wednesday Morning: Boxing with Athletes Unlimited @ 10:00am 
You don't need gloves or a bag to get a good workout. Mark will help guide you through three rounds of boxing with 
this 15 minute home workout. You will want to have a water bottle handy. Join Boxing with Athletes Unlimited 
https://zoom.us/j/911421895?pwd=N2tramY5SStGcitaZHU3ZXlnWUZ4Zz09 Meeting ID: 911 421 895 
Password: 2020 (you will need to type this in) 
 
 



https://www.facebook.com/groups/1297312473791136/

https://zoom.us/j/491570243?pwd=aWFzQ0wxMk0zaUNLQWhBVi81Skx4UT09

https://zoom.us/j/170713916?pwd=bEcwUWNpcFFwdUczL1lLa0szOUZzUT09

https://zoom.us/j/223894280?pwd=aW9rY1hDNDNIUkI4b0p1bE13UlJVdz09

https://zoom.us/j/197652372?pwd=cFhhVkxsaUZyeklzLzBObElhNHVYdz09

https://zoom.us/j/911421895?pwd=N2tramY5SStGcitaZHU3ZXlnWUZ4Zz09





 
 


 
 
 
*Wednesday Afternoon: Tigers Boot Camp @ 2:00pm 
Who is ready for Boot Camp? Anyone can join this class. Get ready for stretching followed by some fun work-outs. 
Watch out as Coach Majewski and Big Mike like to throw out challenge flags. Join Boot Camp 
https://zoom.us/j/635840059?pwd=YlB2L2lxOGJzS24ybTZFUERkWEFXdz09 Meeting ID: 635 840 059 
Password: 2020 (you will need to type this in) 
 
*Wednesday Night: Family Feud with Emma & Morgan @ 7:00pm 
Back by popular demand, Morgan & Emma will host Family Feud! Survey says you should totally play this fun and 
exciting game. Join Family Feud https://zoom.us/j/197652372?pwd=cFhhVkxsaUZyeklzLzBObElhNHVYdz09 
Meeting ID: 197 652 372 Password: 2020 (you will need to type this in) 
 
*Thursday Morning: Zumba with Judi @ 10:00am 
Get ready to Zumba with Judi. You can move and groove to fun music while getting a great workout. 
Join Zumba with Judi https://zoom.us/j/456946537?pwd=L1U0S3B5bzRuYU9yL2pxZWNET2dRdz09 
Meeting ID: 456 946 537, Password: 2020 (you will need to type this in) 
 
*Thursday Afternoon: Spotlighters Open Mic Jam Session @ 2:00pm 
Come join our virtual Spotlighters sing-along! We will revisit some of our favorite songs from past performances and 
then we will learn a new song from a popular Broadway Musical! Join the Spotlighters: 
https://zoom.us/j/372575214?pwd=WFdWYXBwTGhpUEdiOUhCc2ZodnIrdz09 
 
*Thursday Night: Athletes Unlimited Camp Fire @ 7:00pm 
Our camp directors will be throwing a virtual camp fire. Stories, sing-alongs and games might happen, but please know 
all of our camp fires end in a dance party. Join Camp Fire 
https://zoom.us/j/100385968?pwd=ejhWTHRwdzhCc0huYnMvUmRkNmpZdz09 Meeting ID: 100 385 968, Password: 
2020 
 
*Friday Morning: Irish Step Dancing with Jenn @ 10:00am 
Top of the morning to you! Put on some green and join Jenn to learn some basic Irish Step dances. No experience 
needed. Join Irish Step Dancing https://zoom.us/j/715569656?pwd=cW9kTUxCVHBSbjRLVTQ4dWhGSkZFUT09 
Meeting ID: 715 569 656, Password: 2020 (you will need to type this in) 
 
*Late Friday Afternoon: Poetry Slam & Short Short Stories @ 4:00pm 
Athletes Unlimited is asking athletes this week to write a poem, short story or rap to share with us on Friday afternoon. 
Grab a pen or pencil and let your creativity flow. Don't want to write, you can also join the group to listen. 
Join Poetry Slam https://zoom.us/j/147455331?pwd=QmpBMHpsU1djM29zZlo3a2NMTGRhdz09 
Meeting ID: 147 455 331, Password: 2020 (you will need to type this in) 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 



https://zoom.us/j/635840059?pwd=YlB2L2lxOGJzS24ybTZFUERkWEFXdz09

https://zoom.us/j/197652372?pwd=cFhhVkxsaUZyeklzLzBObElhNHVYdz09

https://zoom.us/j/456946537?pwd=L1U0S3B5bzRuYU9yL2pxZWNET2dRdz09

https://zoom.us/j/372575214?pwd=WFdWYXBwTGhpUEdiOUhCc2ZodnIrdz09

https://zoom.us/j/100385968?pwd=ejhWTHRwdzhCc0huYnMvUmRkNmpZdz09

https://zoom.us/j/715569656?pwd=cW9kTUxCVHBSbjRLVTQ4dWhGSkZFUT09

https://zoom.us/j/147455331?pwd=QmpBMHpsU1djM29zZlo3a2NMTGRhdz09





 


 
Hasbro Cares 
“As schools and businesses are closing and we are staying home, we are here to provide some resources to help 
children and families cope with stress that might be heightened at this time. The content below was developed through 
our BE FEARLESS BE KIND initiative to create a kinder more empathetic generation by calling kids to stand up, be 
inclusive and make a difference. These at-home resources will hopefully help to keep your families occupied, calm, 
engaged and most importantly learning.” Employees at Hasbro are sending their support to everyone during these 
times with a video they have created and shared on their website. They have also put together a collection of activities 
for kids to enjoy with all the popular Hasbro products so you can continue to play with Hasbro. 
https://shop.hasbro.com/en-us/bring-home-the-fun?blm_aid=34829 
 
 


 
 
Few of Our Favorite Free Resources While Staying at Home 
From fitness companies to makers of assistive technology software, organizations across the board are stepping up to 
support the blind and visually impaired community during the COVID-19 pandemic 
*Here is the free complete set of the Eyes-Free Fitness® audio exercise programs. These programs allow you to stretch, 
strengthen, condition, and tone your body. All of these programs are thoroughly described with extra supplementary 
audio and text materials. Get started with the Eyes-Free Fitness programs here. 
https://www.blindalive.com/?bblinkid=213411442&bbemailid=20306423&bbejrid=1431544248 
*Headspace is temporarily unlocking a free, specially curated "Weathering the Storm" collection of meditation and 
mindfulness content online and in the Headspace app for people around the world, available in English, French, 
German, Spanish, and Portuguese. Download the Headspace app or visit the Headspace website here. 
https://www.headspace.com/covid-19?bblinkid=213411443&bbemailid=20306423&bbejrid=1431544248 
*Audible Stories is offering free access to educational and entertaining audiobook content. Anyone, in any country, can 
enjoy unlimited streaming of hundreds of titles for kids and families for free with selections available in six languages. 
Start listening to Audible Stories here. https://stories.audible.com/start-listen 
*Apple Books has a collection of free books in nearly every genre and for all ages, plus a "first in a series" promotion 
that lets readers get the first book in different series for free. Learn more about Apple Books here.  
https://www.apple.com/apple-books/?bblinkid=213411445&bbemailid=20306423&bbejrid=1431544248 
 


 
 
Ways to Celebrate Easter with Everyday Household Items 
“...Among the many losses and disappointments of spring will no doubt be the trappings associated with Easter 
celebrations.  Never mind making baskets, I’m also at a point where I don’t even want to do egg dyeing because I’m 
concerned about wasting eggs since there are limits on how many boxes of eggs you can buy at our local market and we 
generally eat a lot of eggs. Given said egg situation + the fact that shopping for Easter supplies is not, in my opinion, 
considered essential and worth risking COVID-19 exposure, I wanted to pull together ideas for how to make things 
festive at home and celebrate Easter using everyday household items. Click through the links/images for tutorials and 
recipes!”   https://www.bostonmamas.com/blog/easter-with-everyday-items 
 
 
 



https://shop.hasbro.com/en-us/bring-home-the-fun?blm_aid=34829

https://www.blindalive.com/?bblinkid=213411442&bbemailid=20306423&bbejrid=1431544248

https://www.headspace.com/covid-19?bblinkid=213411443&bbemailid=20306423&bbejrid=1431544248

https://stories.audible.com/start-listen

https://www.apple.com/apple-books/?bblinkid=213411445&bbemailid=20306423&bbejrid=1431544248

https://www.bostonmamas.com/blog/easter-with-everyday-items





 


  Family Support & Special  Interest 


 
 


 
 


Download Schedules for Daily Structure 
https://www.autismresourcecentral.org/schedules-for-daily-structure/ 
 
 
 


 
 
Visual timer apps: These are great for managing transitions! 
*Visual Countdown timer (free): https://apps.apple.com/us/app/visual-countdown-timer/id541364004 
*Or Visual timer (free): https://apps.apple.com/us/app/visual-timer/id1392401197 
 
 


 


 
K-8 Resources for Online Learning 
Parent Coaches Peggy and Sally have put together a range of online resources to help keep your child's mind engaged 
during the school closures. Check them out! 
*Preschool Activity Guide https://hallowelltodaro.com/preschool-activities 
*K-2 Activity Guide https://hallowelltodaro.com/k-2-activities 
*Grades 3-5 Activity Guide https://hallowelltodaro.com/grades-3-5-activities 
*Middle School Activity Guide https://hallowelltodaro.com/middle-school-activities 
 


 


 
 
17 Apps to Help Kids Stay Focused 
So much of the time, our technology is a way to escape -- and get off-task. We catch ourselves checking our phones at 
work, and our kids check them during homework time. If Daniel Tiger is on, there's no getting a little kid out the door. 
But instead of distraction, we can use devices to work for us and help us get things done. Need help organizing your 
kid's chores? There's an app for that. Creating good habits? Got you covered. There's even an app to help you not use 
other apps! So check out these fantastic tools to help keep you focused. Read more here 
https://www.commonsensemedia.org/lists/apps-to-help-kids-stay-focused 
 
 
 
 
 
 



https://www.autismresourcecentral.org/schedules-for-daily-structure/

https://apps.apple.com/us/app/visual-countdown-timer/id541364004

https://apps.apple.com/us/app/visual-timer/id1392401197

https://hallowelltodaro.com/preschool-activities

https://hallowelltodaro.com/k-2-activities

https://hallowelltodaro.com/grades-3-5-activities

https://hallowelltodaro.com/middle-school-activities

https://www.commonsensemedia.org/lists/apps-to-help-kids-stay-focused





 


 
For children with autism, a trip to the dentist can be overwhelming. This program is helping to ease anxiety 
“Today, approximately one in 59 children in the U.S. is diagnosed with ASD, according to 2018 data from the Centers for 
Disease Control. And many children with ASD, like Malcolm, experience some level of anxiety about going to the 
dentist. That’s where the Autism Smiles program at Tufts School of Dental Medicine comes in. Autism Smiles offers kids 
with ASD an opportunity to visit the dentist office and get familiar with the tools and the environment before going in 
for an actual treatment….” Read full article here https://www.baystateparent.com/news/20200331/for-children-with-
autism-trip-to-dentist-can-be-overwhelming-this-program-is-helping-to-ease-anxiety 
 


 
Online Support Groups for Parents  
When: Dates/Times Vary (See Below) 
Format: Online 
Whether you have a young child missing the structure of school, an adult child who is feeling isolated, or a child anxious 
about COVID-19, AANE is here for you! During these stressful times, we are available via email, phone, and Zoom with 
extended availability into evening hours, including free information and referral phone calls for Parents of Children & 
Teens and Parents of Adults. If you don't see a time in the schedule that works for you, please contact us. 
Updates for Parents of Children and Teens 
In an effort to help keep our community connected, AANE Staff will be online for FREE Group Chats that offer virtual 
support: 
*Parents of Children: Meeting every Wednesday evening from 7-8 PM EDT 
*Parents of Teens: Meeting every Thursday evening from 7-8 PM EDT 
*NOW ONLINE* Grandparent Group: April 7 & 21 
FREE Parents of Children & Teen Online Google Group Forum 
We are delighted to offer parents the option to join the following grant assisted Support Group Series (same 
participants meeting for a set number of sessions, advanced registration required),at a reduced price: 
*Reduced price - Online Parents of Gender Questioning Teens 
For those in need of financial assistance who are interested in the following parent support groups, use promo code 
*FREESUPPORT to enroll free-of-charge. 
*FREE Online Parents of High School Boys & Girls 
*FREE Online Parent of Latino Children & Teens 
For more information and registration visit   https://www.aane.org/resources/family-and-friends/support-groups-
parents-children-teens/#free_online_chat 


 


 
 
SibChat: A Virtual Resiliency Program for Siblings of Children with Autism Spectrum Disorder Research Opportunity 
The Massachusetts General Hospital is offering an 8-session, (1 hour/session) virtual resiliency program, over Zoom, to 
siblings of children with ASD. If you are the sibling of a child with ASD you may be eligible to participate. We are offering 
a virtual-delivery resiliency program to siblings of children with ASD. The program teaches relaxation techniques, stress 
awareness, and problem-solving skills to help cope with the stressors of being a sibling of a child with ASD. For more 
details visit https://rally.partners.org/study/sibchat 
 


 


Please Note: These resources are provided for informational purposes only. 
Please do your own due diligence and research. 


 


 



https://www.baystateparent.com/news/20200331/for-children-with-autism-trip-to-dentist-can-be-overwhelming-this-program-is-helping-to-ease-anxiety

https://www.baystateparent.com/news/20200331/for-children-with-autism-trip-to-dentist-can-be-overwhelming-this-program-is-helping-to-ease-anxiety

https://www.aane.org/resources/family-and-friends/support-groups-parents-children-teens/#free_online_chat

https://www.aane.org/resources/family-and-friends/support-groups-parents-children-teens/#free_online_chat

https://rally.partners.org/study/sibchat



		Apr 2020 Elem.pdf

		SummaryReport






